Rakon Limited

Financial Statements
2019



Rakon Limited

Table of Contents

Directors’ Report 2
Statement of Comprehensive Income 3
Statement of Changes in Equity 4
Balance Sheet 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6-7
Notes to the Financial Statements 8-50
Independent Auditor’s Report 51




Rakon Limited

Directors’ Report

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements fairly present the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019 (FY2019) and their financial perfermance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

The Directors consider that the financlal statements of the Company and the Group have been prepared using appropriate aceotnting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all relevant financial reporting and
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept, which enable, with reasonable accuracy, the determination of the
financial position of the Company and the Group and facilitate compliance of the financial statements with the Financial Markets Conduct
Act 2013.

The Directors consider they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

During the year the Company acquired the remaining 51% interest in Rakon India Private Limited for US$5.5m; prior to this Rakon India was
a joint venture. The Directors niote that there were no other material changes in the nature of the business undertaken by the Company
and the Group in the past year,

The Directors present the financial statements set out in pages 3-50, of Rakon Limited and subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2019,
The Board of Directors of Rakon Limited authorised these financial statements for issue on 16 May 2019,

Financial results

Rakon Limited has reported a full year net profit after tax of $3.4m (2018: $10.0m).

Sales revenue for the year was $114m, up $12.9m or 13% on the prior year, with Increased revenue across the Telecommunications and
$pace & Defence markets and decreased revenue in the Global Positioning market. Gross profit for the year was $51.7m, up $8.4m or 19%
on the prior year. Gross profit increased from the flow through of higher revenue; the consolidation of Rakon India’s operations from May
2018; and from the improved mix of business in products and markets. Operating expenses for the year were $47.3m, up $5.7m comparad
to the prior year,

During the year, the Company moved from a net cash paosition of $7.4m at 31 March 2018 to a net debt position of $7.7m at 31 March 2019
with the acquisition of the remaining 51% interest in Rakon India and Investment in inventory and equipment to meet growing demand,
predominantly in the Telecommunications market. As at 31 March 2019, Rakon's shareholders’ equity stood at $90.0m, funding 66% of
total assats.

The Board maintains a dividend policy, such that a dividend will be paid of up to 50% of the after tax profit, if considered fiscally appropriate
by the Directors, The Board has determined that no dividend will be paid for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Donations and audit fees

The Group made donations totalling $14,000 during the year. Amounts paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers for audit and other services are
shown in section B2 d) of the financial statements.

On behalf of the Directors

B lrvine BJ Robinson

Chairman CEQ, Managing Director




Rakon Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Note 3000s $000s
Continuing operations
Revenue BZa) 113,985 101,127
Cost of sales (62,317) (57,828)
Gross profit 51,668 43,299
Other aperatingincome B2 b) 121 2,421
Operatingexpenses B2d) (47,338) (41,628)
Other gains —net B2¢) 718 4,624
impalirment b1 a) - (120}
Operating profit 5,168 8,598
Finance income D1c) 37 3
Fimance costs D1e) (571) [(504)
Share of gain/{loss) of assoclates and joint venture B4 b) 839 (1,918)
Net dilution gain on Thinxtra shares . Bag - 4,815
Profit before income tax 5,474 16,997
Income tax expense Did) {2,110} {998)
Net profit for the year 3,364 9,999
Other comprehansive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequentiy to profit orioss
Decrease in fair value cash flow hedges {1,812} (372)
Cost ofhedging 31 -
Exchange-differe'nces on translation of foreign operations 1,329 2,766
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 507 104
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in fairvalue of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income - Thinxtra fasa) )
Other comprehensive income for the year, net oftax {399) 2,498
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,965 12,497
Profit attributable to equity halders ofthe Company ] 3,364 9,999
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders ofthe Company 2,965 12,497
Earnings per share for continuing operationsattributable to the equity holders ofthe
Company Cents Cents
Basic earnings pershare D10 a) 1.5 4.4
Diluted earnings per share D16 h) 1.5 4.3

The accampanying netes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Rakon Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Retained
Share capital earnings Otherreserves  Total equity
Note $000s $000s $000s $0600s
Balance at31 March 2017 181,035 (83,218) (23,260) 74,557
Net profit after tax for the year - 9,999 - 9,999
Currency translation differences DS B - 2,766 2,766
Cashflow hedges, net oftax 31 - - (268) (268}
Total comprehensive income for the year - 9,999 2,498 12,497
Contribution of equity net oftransaction costs {11) - - (11)
Employee share schemes
Value of employee services D5 - - 8 8
Balance at 31 March 2018 181,024 {73,219} (20,754) 87,051
Met profit after tax for the year - 3,364 - 3,364
Currency translation differences DS - - 1,329 1,329
Cash flow hedges, netoftax D5 : - - {1,274) {1,274}
e itvl .
e o e e
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,364 (399) 2,965
Balance at 31 March 2019 181,024 {69,855) {21,153) 90,016

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.




Rakon Limited

Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2019

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assetatfair value through profitand loss
Inventories
Currentincame taxasset

Tatal current assets

Non-current assets

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assetatfair value through other comprehensive income - Thinxtra

Trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investmentin associate
Interestin joint venture
Deferred taxasset
Total nen-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Currant labilities
Bank overdraft
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Deferred consideration on acquisition —Rakon India
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions
Deferred revenue ~Siward
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Borrowings
Provisions
Defarred tax liabilities
Total non-currant liabilities
Totzal liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Otherreserves
Accumulated losses
Totat equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financlal statements.

2019 2018
Note $000s $000s
D2a) 4,719 10,364
B3 b) 38,220 28,395
D2 b) 307 1,078
D2b) 19 211
B5a) 39,310 24,171
561 146
83,136 64,365
D2 b) 258 334
g4 d} 4,549 -
B3 b) 2,267 2,716
D3a} 15,394 13,481
BS b) 9,149 9,115
B4 b) 10,399 14,640
B4 b) - 2,876
D4 7,352 5,906
53,368 49,068
136,504 113,433
D2e) 11,501 2,824
DZe) 474 98
D2 d} 26,398 18,107
BG 1,885 -
D2 b} 845 235
D3 b) 473 961
B2 b} - 101
41,674 23,326
D2 b} 343 78
D2 e} 412 -
D3 b} 2,990 2,734
D4 1,069 244
4,814 3,056
46,488 26,382
90,016 87,051
D6 a) 181,024 181,024
DS (21,153) {20,754)
(69,855} {73,219) ﬁ
90,016 87,051




Rakon Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Operating activities
Cash provided from
Receipts from customers
R&D grants received
Other income received

Cash was applied to
Payment to suppliers and others
Paymentto employees
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities
Investing activities
Cash was provided from

Netproceads from saie of Thinxtra shares
Sale of property, plant and eguipment

Cash was applied to

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase ofintangibles
Purchase of shares in CRI

Net cash flow from Investing activities
Financing activities
Cash was applied to

Share issuance cost

Repayment of principal on borrowings

Finance lease payments
Cash was applied to flnancing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

Neat (decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Composition of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Bankoverdraft

Total cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

2019 2018

Note $000s $000s
114,574 101,691

1,894 1,726

58 3

116,926 103,420

{71,605) {57,998)

(46,286) {36,735)

{459} {536)

{254} (247}

(118,694} (95,516)

{1,768) 7,904

- 3,178

82 4,754

82 7,932

(6,188) (3,236)

{720} {840)

Bea) . {5,848) -
{12,756} {4,076)

{12,674) 3,856

- {11)

- {4,500)

(24) {31)

(24) {4,542)

{24} (4,542)

(14,466) 7,218

144 246

7,540 76

{6,782} 7,540

D2 a) 4,719 10,364
D2 ) (11,501} (2,824)
(6,782) 7,540




Rakon Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Note $000s $000s
Reconcillatlon of net profit to net cash flows from operating activities
Reported net profit after tax 3,364 9,999
Adjustments for
Depreciation expense D3 a) 3,765 2,504
Amortisation expense 85b) 2,037 1,838
Impairment bia) - 120
Increase in estimated doubtful debts 475 7
Provisions provided D3 b) 342 159
Employee share based expense D1b) - 8
Movement in foreign currency 439 (590}
Monetised cash flow hedge, net of tax B2¢) - {1,096}
Deferred revenue ~Siward technology license agreement B2 b) (101} (2,351}
Share of net profits/{losses}ofassociates and joint venture B4 b) {839} 1,915
Deferred tax movement 231 382
Lossf(gain) on disposal of propearty, plant and equipment (82) (2,155)
Thinxtra shares —fair value adjustment B2 c) - (1,852}
Net Dilution gain on Thinxtra shares - (4,815}
Charge In operating assets and liabilties
Increase in trade and other receivables {5,007) {146}
Decrease in provisions (246) (645}
{Increase)/decrease In inventories (9,145) 115
Increase intrade and other payables 2,781 4,557
Increase/(decrease)in tax provisions 218 {50)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,768} 7,904
Net cash reconciliation
An analysis of net debt and the movements in net cash is presented below.
Other asset Liabilities from financing activities
Other Other Bank Bank
borrowing  borrowing  barrowing  borrowing
Cash/ bank due within dueafter  due within due after
overdraft 1 year 1 year 1 year 1year Total
$000s $000s $060s $000s $000s 5000s
Balance asat 1 Apri{ 2017 76 (30} (31) (4,500) - {4,485}
Cash flows 7,218 - 31 4,500 - 11,749
Foreign exchange changes 246 (1) - - - 245
Bafance asat 31 March 2018 7,540 (31} - - - 7,509
Cash flows (14,466) - 24 - - (14,442}
Foreign exchange changes 144 - - - - 144
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (6,782) {31} 24 - - {6,788)




Rakon Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Rakon Limited

A. General information

Rakon LImited (the Company) and its subsidiaries {the Group) design and manufacture frequency control solutions for a wide range of
applications. Rakon has leading market positions in the supply of crystal oscillators te the tetecommunications, giobal positioning and space
& defence markets. The Campany is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. It is registered under the
Companies Act X953 with its registered office at 8 Sylvia Park Road, Mt Wellington, Auckland.

The financial statements of the Group have been presented in New Zealand dollars unless otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by Raken's Board of Directors (‘the Board’) on 16 May 2018,
B. Calculation of key numbers

B1l., Segment information

The chief operating decision makers assess the performance of the operating segments based on 2 non-GAAP measure of ‘Underlying
EBITDA’ defined as:

‘Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment, employee share schemes, non-controlling interests, adjustments for
associate’s and joint venture’s share of interest, tax & depreciation, loss on disposal of assets and ather cash and non-cash iterns {Underlying
EBITDAY, refer note Bl ¢).

Underlying EBITDA 15 a non-GAAP measure that has not been presented in accordance with GAAP. The Directors present Underlying EBITDA
as a useful non-GAAP measure to investors, in order to understand the underlying operating performance of the Group and each operating
segment, before the adjustment of specific cash and non-cash items and before cash impacts relating to the capital structure and tax
position. Underlying EBITDA is considered by the Directors to be the closest measure of how each operating segment within the Group is
performing, Management uses the non-GAAP measure of Underlying EBITDA internally, to assess the underlying operating performance of
the Group and each operating segment.

Underlying EBITDA as non-GAAP financial information has been extracted from the financial statements for the year. Except for Underlying
EBITDA, other information provided to the chief operating decision maker is measured in a manner consistent with GAAP. The Directors
provide a reconslliation of Underlying EBITDA to net profit for the year, refer note 81 ¢},

Bla) Accounting policy

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision makers. The
chief operating decision makers, who are respansible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, have
been identified as the Managing Director, Sales and Marketing Director and Chiaf Financial Officer.

Blh} Segment results
31 March 2019
China—- Australia—

NZ UK France T'maker® Thinxtra® India® Other® Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 50005
Sales to external customers 64,376 - 45,058 - - 4,551 - 113,985
Inter-segment sales 285 - 33 - - - (323} (5)
Segment revenue 64,661 - 45,091 - - 4,551 [323) 133,980
Underlying EBITDA 7,857 1,691 (1,312) 2,136 - 2,605 293 13,270
Depreciation and amortisation 2,426 515 1,775 - - 1,099 {13) 5,202
Income tax {expense)/credit (858} (214) 31 - - {a20) {649) {2,110}
Total assets’ 65,766 2,141 32,129 10,399 - 23,085 2,984 136,504
Investment in associates . ) ] 10,399 n - - 10,399
ot a7
Total liabilities® 27,373 591 9,798 468 - 7,497 761 46,488



Rakon Limited

Sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales
Segment revenuee
Underlylng EBITDA
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment

Income tax ([expenselfcredit
Total assets?

Investment in assoclates
Investmentin joint venture
Additions of property, plant,
eguipment and intangibfes

Total liabitities®

31 March 2018
India—
China~  Centum Australia—
Nz UK France Tmaker’  Rakon®  Thinxtra® Other® Total
5000s 5000s $000s 5000s $000s $000s $D00s $000s
£3,812 - 37,315 - - - - 101,127
163 - 5 - - - 33 201
63,975 - 37,320 - - - 33 101,328
7,611 1,591 1,334 2,115 (9} (430) {118) 12,004
2,517 508 1,408 - - - {91) 4,342
120 - - - - - - 120
{623} {129} 29 - - - (275) (998)
51,819 3,253 37,326 9,350 2,876 5,280 3,517 313,433
- - - 9,350 - 5,290 - 14,540
- - - - 2,876 - - 4,876
2,463 441 1,255 - - - 4 4,163
11,987 452 13,459 - - - 474 26,382

! includes Rakon Limited's 40% share of investment in Chengdu Timemaker Crystai Technology Co, Limited and Shenzhen Taixiang Wafer

Co, Limited, refer note B4 b).

% On 2 May 2018, the Group acquired remaining 51% of the issued shares it did not own in Centum Rakon India Private Limited {CRI), a
previously held joint venture which provides products and services to the frequency control industry. Subsequent to acquisition, the name
was changed to Rakon India Private Limitad. Refer note B6,

? Includes investments in subsidiaries, Rakon Financial Services Limited, Rakon UK Holdings Limited, Rakon Investrent HK Limited, and

Rakon HK Limited.

* The measure of assets has been disclosed for each reportable segment as it is regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers
and excludes intercompany balances eliminated on consclidation.

® The measure of liabilities has been disclosed for each reportable segment as it is regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers
and excludes intercompany balances eliminated on consolidation.

% Rakon Limited’s 21.4% interest in Thinxtra Limited refer note 84 d}.

Bic} Recanciliation of Underlying EBITDA to net profit for the year

Contlnuing operations
Underlying EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation

One offcash gains
tmployee share schemes
Finance costs ~net

Adjustment for associates and joint venture share ofinterest, tax and depreciation

Net dilution gain on Thinxtra shares

Impairment
Loss on assetsales/disposal
Otherpon-cash items

Profit before Income tax
income tax expense

Net profit for the year

2019 2018
4000s $000s
13,270 12,094
(5,802} 4,342)
- 1,096

- (8}

(534) (501}
{1,120) {1,751)
- 4,815

- {120)

(6} (25)
(334} {261)
5,474 10,997
{2,110) {998}
3,364 9,999




Rakon Limited

B2, Profit and loss information

B2 a) Revenue

Rakon s a global high technology company that designs and manufactures advanced frequency cantrol and timing solutions. These are used
in the Telecommunications, Global Positioning and Space & Defence markets.

The Group has one main revenue stream which is the sale of manufactured finished products. The majority of the revenue earned by the
Group is derived from the contracts with one single performance obligation which is the sale of products. Revenue is measured based on
consideration specified in a contract with the customer and excludes amounts coilectad on behalf of third parties, The Group recognizes
revenue when it transfers control over a product to a customer. Revenue is presented net of value added tax {VAT) and discounts and after
eliminating intragroup sales,

The impact fram the adoption of the new standard has been disclosed in note D1 2c.

Revenue has been historically recognised at the time when the legal title of the products passes to the customer. It has been determined
that the customer obtains control of the product at the same time as legal title passes to the customer, typically on defivery. In relation to
the contract price, it has been determined that there are no material changes under NZ IFRS 15 to the accounting of variable cansideration,
No element of financing Is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 - 90 days which 1s consistent with market practice,
A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point of time that the consideration is unconditional because onlythe
passage of time is required before the payment is due,

Long-term contracts - space and defence segment in France

Then Group has long-term contracts in space and defence segment In France, For these contracts, the revenue is recognised over time
because Group’s performance creates an asset which does not have an alternative use to the Group, and the Group has an enforceable
right to be paid for work completed to date. The Group uses the percentage-of-completion to determine the appropriate amount to
recognise in a given peried. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Breakdown of revanue from all sources

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Sales of goods 113,227 99,916
Revenue from services 758 1,211
Total revenue 113,985 101,127

Breakdown of revenue by region

The Group's trading revenue is derived in the following regions. Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is located.

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Asia 53,799 41,330

North America 25,793 23,950

Europe 31,671 33,069

Others 2,722 2,788

Total revenue by region 113,985 101,127
Breakdown of revenue by market segiment

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Telecommunications 53,599 40,457

Global Positioning 20,498 25,599

Space and Defence 31,583 27,984

Other 8,305 6,687

Total revenue by market segment 113,985 101,127




Rakon Limited

B2 b} Other operating income

Accounting policy
Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Breakdown of other operating income:

2019 2018

$000s $000s

QOtherincome 20 70
Income from technotogy license agreement with Siward 101 2,351
Total other operatingincome 121 2,421

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions — prior year

Investment by Siward Crystal Technology Company Limited (‘'Siward') and attribution of proceeds

Siward is a Taiwan based ¢rystat manufacturer, which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. In February 2017, Siward paid US$10m cash
in return for 38,016,681 fully paid ordinary shares in Rakon and rights arising from a technology license agreement. Siward took up one

appointment on Rakon’s Board.

At 31 March 2019, the transfer under the technology Acence agreement was fully completed {2018: 59%) and revenue of $0.1m (2018:

$2.4m) recognised.

B2¢c) Other gains — net
2019 2018
$000s $000s
{Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant, equipment, and Intangible 1 (82) 2,155
Sale of shares in Thinxtra - 1,852
(82) 4,007

Forelgn exchange gains—net
Forward foreign exchange contracts

Held for trading 45 122
Gain on revaluation offoreign denominated monetary assets and liabilities * 754 485
Total foreign exchange gains—net 300 617
Total other gains—net 718 4,624

In 2018, the sale of land and buildings at Argenteuil, France was completad, and gain on sale of $2.1m recognised.

2 During December 2017, Thinxtra undertook additional capital raising {Series B). During this capital raising Rakon sold 199,242 shares for

A%$3.0m to applicants who missed out on a Serles B aliotment. In 2018, a resultant gain of NZ$1.9m was realised.

? Includes realised and unrealised gains/{losses) arising from accounts receivable and accounts payable. Hedge accounting is sought on the

initial sale of goods and purchase of inventory, subsequent movements are recognised in trading foreign exchange.



Rakon Limited

B2 d) Operating expenses

Accounting Pollcy

Proteeds such as grants and tax credits associated to operating expenses are directly net off the related expense. These research and
development costs have a government related grant or tax credit refated to the operating expense, which have been identified separately
In the breakdown of operating expenses below.

201% 2018
$000s $000s
Operating expense by functian
Selling and marketing 9,809 9,805
Research and development 11,029 9,712
General and administration 26,500 22,009
Total operating expenses 47,338 41,626
Operating expensesinclude
Depreciation~inclusive of depreciation included In cost of sales (note D3 a) 3,785 2,504
Amortisation (note BS b) 2,087 1,838
Research and development expense 12,873 11,771
Research and development government grant (847) {739}
Research and development tax credit (997) {1,320)
Restructure costs —inclusive of restructure costs included in cost of sales (note D3 b) - 159
Rental expense on operating feases 2,613 2,268
Costs ofoffering credit
Bad debt recoveries flwrite-offs) - 18
Allowance for expected credit loss provision 475 -
Governance expenses
Directors'fees 358 390
Auditors' fees
Principai auditor's fees 622 537
Breakdown of fees:
Audit fees for current year 551 460
Halfyear financial statements agreed procedures 24 23
Government R&D credits reviews 145 21
Annuai Shareholders' Meeting procedures 8 8
Treasury advisory services 25 25
Audit services other auditors 24 23
Sundry expenses
Donations 14 5



Rakon Limited

B3. Financial assets and liabilities

83 a) Financial instruments

Financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,

derivative financial instruments.

borrowings and

At fafrvalue
Financial agsets Atfairvalue throughother Darlvatives
atamortised through profit comprehensive used for
31 March2019 cost and loss income hedging Total
Assets per balance sheet $000s 5000s $000s $000s 40005
Derivative financial instruments (note D2 b) - 19 - 565 584
Trade and other receivahbles 37,126 - - - 37,126
Cashand cash equivalents (note D2 a} 4,719 - - - 4,719
Fairvalue through other comprehensive
inaconfeu-Thinxtrga ° ) ) 4,549 : 4,349
Total assets per balance sheat 43,845 19 4,549 565 46,978
Liahiiltiesat
fair value Derivativas Financiat
through the used for [tabilities at
31 March2019 profitand loss hedging amortised cost Total
Liabilities per balance sheat $000s $000s $000s $000s
Borrowings - - 12,387 12,387
Berivative financial instruments {note D2 b} a5 1,193 - 1,288
Trade and other payables - - 14,471 14,471
i ion of Htlon -
::g;rt;:dci::nmderau nacquisition 1,885 ) ) 1,885
Totat liabllities per balance sheet 1,580 1,193 26,858 30,031
At falrvalue Darivativas
Cashand through profit used for
31 March 2018 receivables and loss hedging Totai
Assets per balance sheet $000s $000s 50003 $000s
Perivative financlal instruments {note D2 b) - 211 1,412 1,623
Trade and otherreceivables 310,159 - - 30,159
Cash and cash equivalents (note D2 a} 10,364 - - 10,364
Total assets per balance sheat 40,523 211 1,412 42,146
Liabilitiesat
fatr value Derivatives
through the used for  Other financial )
31March 2018 profit and loss hedging liahilities Total
Liabilities per balance sheet $000s $000s $000s $000s
Borrowings - - 2,922 2,922
Derivative financial instruments (note D2 b) 91 222 - 313
Trade and cther payables - - 12,800 12,800
Total liabilities per halance sheet 91 222 15,722 16,035

Financial Instruments by category

The line items in the tables above anly include financial instruments. Trade and other receivables in note B3 b} and trade and other payahles
in note D2 d} include both financial and non-financlal items.

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ =h
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Rakon Limited

B3 b} Trade and other receivables

Accounting policy

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, lass provision for impalement.

As of 31 March 2019, trade receivables of $816,000 (2018: $564,000) were impaired and provided for. These receivables are calculated in
accordance with the expected credit foss (ECL) model.

Breakdown of trade and other receivables

2419 2018

5000s $000s

Trade receivables 33,960 25,932
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (816) (64)
Nettrade receivables 33,144 25,868
Prepayments 1,448 952
GST/VAT receivable 1,913 -
Receivables from related parties {note D9 b) 349 307
Other receivables * 3,633 3,984
Total trade and other receivables 40,487 31,111
Less non-current other recelvables * 2,267 2,716
Current trade and other receivables 38,220 28,395

1 Other receivables includes research and development tax credits and government grants.
The fair values of trade and other receivables are equivalent to the carrying values,

The following table summarises the impact of doubtful debt and expected credit loss on the trade receivables balance:

The movement in the provision for the expected credit loss during the year was as follows:

More than 30daystc  Morathan
30 dayspast 180 dayspast 180 dayspast

Current due due due Total

$000s 50005 40005 $0005 $000s

Gross carryingamount oftrade receivables 28,033 4,600 614 713 33,960
Expected loss rate 1.6% 2.6% 16.9% 20.0%

Allowance for the expected ¢redit loss {(449) {120) {104) {143) {818)

Apeing

Included in trade and other receivables are the below amounts which were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
customers for whom there is no recent history of defauit.

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Up to 3 months 4,600 4,475

3 to 6 months 614 1,522
Gver 6 months 713 167
Total overdue trade receivables 5,927 6,164
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Currencies

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018

$000s $000s

NZD 1,764 606
uso 23,594 17,250
EUR 10,663 12,396
GBP 703 837
INR 3,530 -
Other 233 22
Total trade and other receivables 40,487 31,111

The maximurn exposure te credit risk at balance date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

B4. Interests in associates and joint venture

B4 a) Accounting policy

Assoclates are entitfes over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accountad for using the equity method of accounting and are initiafly
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventares. The classification depends on the contractuzl rights and
abligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the Joint arrangement. The Group’s joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the aquity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in other comprehensive
incame of the investee. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment, When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interast in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the G roup does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurrad obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised galns on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest In these entities, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in note D12 ¢),

The carrying amounts of the investments are reviewed at each balance date t0 determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated being the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 1o self and the
asset’s value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment fosses are recegnised in the statement of cemprehensive income,

B4 ) Breakdown of interest in associates and joint venture

Set out below are the associates and joint venture of the Group. The entitles fisted below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group, The country of incarporation or registration is also their principat place of business, and the
proportion of awnership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Equity accounted
% of owrnership Net investmant (loss)/profit
Name of entity Country of interest Nature of Measurement 2019 2048 2019 2018
Incorporation 2019 2018 relationship method $000s 50005  $000s  $000s
Chengdu Timemaker Crystal i
R China 40%  40%  Associate Equity method 9,974 8,925
Technology Co. Ltd
Shenzhen Taixiang Wafer Co. .
Ltg China 40%  40% Assoclate Equity method 425 425
Total Timemaker Group 10,399 9,350  1,05C 508
Thinxtra Pty Limited ® Australia - 21.4% Associate Equity method - 5,290 {287} {2,273)
Total carrying amount of assoclates 10,399 14,640 763 (1,365)
Centem Rakon inda Private Ltd 2 India - 49% lointventure Equity method - 2,876 76 (550)
Total carrying amount of equity accounted associates and Jointvanture - 17,518 839 (1,91%)
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1 The Group has a 40% interest in two refated companies: Chengdu Timemaker Crystal Technology Co. Limited and Shenzhen Talxiang Wafer
Co. Limited, which provide products and services ta the frequency control products industry.

20n 2 May 2018, the Group assumed full ownership of Centum Rakon India Private Limited {CRI) by acquiring the remaining 519% interest
of shares and subsequently changed the name to Rakon India Private Limited. Prior to the acquisition, CRE was a joint venture.

2 Due to loss of significant influence, on 1 June 2018, the Group has reclassified the investment in Thinxtra Pty Limitad (Thinxtra), as a
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income. Refer also note 84 d).

B4 ¢) Summarised financial information for associates and joint venture

The tables below provide summarised financial information for the associates and joint venture of the Group. The information disclosed
reflects the amounts presented In the financial statements of the relevant associates and joint venture and not the Group's share of those
amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value
adjustments and modifications for differences n accounting policy. The total Timemaker Group is an aggregate of Chengdu Timemaker
Crystal Technelogy Co. Limited and Shenzhen Taixiang Wafer Co, Limited.

in June 2017, Chengdu Shen-Timemaker Crystal Technalogy Co, Limited, a company in the Timemaker Group, was merged with Chengdu
Timemaker Crystal Technology Co. Limited.

Chengdu Shen- Chengdu Timemaker
Timemaker Crystal Crystal Technology  Shenrhen Talxiang Total Timemaker
Technology Co. Ltd Co. Ltd Wafer Co. Ltd Group
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
$000s $000s 50005 5000s 50005 $000s $000s $000s
Summarised Balance Sheet
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents - 2,904 3,138 2 2 2,906 3,140
Othercurrent assets - - 17,786 15,450 i,a3% 1,135 18,921 16,585
Total current assets - - 20,690 18,588 1,137 1,137 21,827 19,725
Non-current assets - - 25,087 24,200 - - 25,097 24,200
Current liabilities
::n:ant;l:sl]llabillt!es {excludingtrade ) 11,371 8,434 ) ; 11,371 8,434
Other current lizbtlitles - - 8,923 10,364 73 73 8,956 10,437
Total current llabilities - - 20,294 18,798 73 73 20,367 18,871
Non-current liabilitles - -
Other non-current liabilities - - 558 1,678 - - 558 1,678
Total non-gurrent liabilities - - 558 1,678 - - 558 1,678
Net assets - - 24,835 22,312 1,064 1,064 25995 23,376

Chengdu Shen- Chengdu Timemaker

Timemaker Crystal Crystal Technology  Shenzhen Taixiang Total Timemaker
Technology Co. Ltd Co.Ltd Wafer Co. Ltd Group
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2013 2018
$000s 5000s $000s $000s $000s  S000s $000s $000s

Summarised Statement of

Comprehensive Income

Revenue - - 28,260 24,481 - - 28,260 24,481
Depreciation and amortisation - (74} (3,071) (1,809) - - (3,071} (1,883}
Interest expenses - - (576) (1,047) - - {576}  {1,017)
{Loss)/profit for the period - {166} 2,625 2,469 - - 2,625 2,304
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Chengdu Shen- Chengdu Timemaker

Timemaker Crystal Crystal Technolegy  Shenzhen Talxiang Total Timemaker
Technology Co. Etd Co. Ltd Wafer Co. Ltd Group
2012 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
$000s $000s 50005 $000s 50005 $000s 50005 $000s

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying

amount

Rakon'sshare in % 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
Rakon's share of assoclates'and joint - . 0,974 8,925 425 425 10,399 9,350

venture's net assets
Carrying amount - - 9,974 8,925 425 425 10,399 9,350
Movement in carrying amount

Openirgnet assets 1 April 9,350 7,930

Equity accounted profit 1,050 908

Foreign exchange movement _ Q) 512

Carrying amount 10,399 9,350

Centum Rakon India Private Ltd | Thinxtra Pty L-td
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000s $000s $000s $000s

Summarised Balance Sheet
Current assets

Cash & cash eguivalents - 1,158 - 11,117

Other current assets - 11,721 - 2,091
Total current assets - 12,880 - 13,208
Non-current assets - 5,518 - 10,509
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) - 2,157 - 149

Other current liabilities - 3,645 - 1,400
Total current liabilities - 5,802 - 1,549
Non-current [iabilities

Other non-current liabilities - 269 - .
Total non-current liabilities - 269 - -
Net assets - 12,327 - 22,168

Centum Rakon India Private Ltd Thinxtra Pty Ltd
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000s $000s 50005 $000s

Summarised Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue - 14,951 - 615
Interast income - 130 - 37
Depreciation and amortisation - (1,340} - {1}
Interest expense - {118} - -
Loss forthe year - {1,121} - (7,642)
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Centum Rakon tndia Private Ltd Thinxtra Pty Ltd
2019 2018 2019 2018
$000s $000s 50005 $000s
Reconciliation of nat assetsto carrying amount
Rakon's share In % 49% 21.5%
Rakon's share of associates'and joint venture's net assets - 6,040 - 4,775
Goodwill - - - 515
Cumulative impairment - (3,164) - -
Carryingamount - 2,876 - 5,290
Movement in carrying amount
Opening netassets 1 Aprii 2,876 3,722 5,290 4,074
Equity accounted Gain/[loss} 76 (550} (287} (2,273}
Foreign exchange movement 42 {296) - -
De-recognition of joint venture and assoclates (2,994} - (5,003)
Gain on share price dilution recognised - - - 4,815
Reduction in carryingvalue from sale ofshares during the year - - - (1,326)
Netcarryingamount - 2,876 - 5,280
B4 d} Investment in Thinxtra

Thinxtra Pty Limited ("Thinxtra') is an 'Internet of Things' {I0T} business that started In 2016. Thinktra's focus is on establishing an loT network
in Australia, New Zealand and Hong Kong and providing products, services and solutions enabling connectivity of devices to the network,
Thinxtra's business model is based on subscription for access to the network, platform solutions and the sale of loT products. Further
information s available at www.thinxtra.com.

Rakan was one of the founding members of Thinxtra in 2016 and has a 21.4% ownership interest at 31 March 2019,

Loss of significant influence and fair value re-measurement (1 Juna 2018)

On 1 June 2018 Rakon lost significant influence in Thinxtra and ceased equity accounting the investment, In accordance with NZ [AS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures at 1 fune 2018, the investment held was measured at fair value of $12.2m and a gain of $7.2m
recognised in profit and loss. In determining the fair value at 1 June 2018, the Directors obtained an independent valuation report and
adopted the lowest valuation in the range given in that report, In determining a valuation range the Independent valuation report reliad on
the October 2017 capital raise which was oversubscribed and the subsequent sale of 199,763 shares by Rakon In November 2017 to those
who missed out on the capltal raise. Further, effective 1 June 2018, the Group elected to present subsequent changes in fair value of its
Investment in Thinxtra in other comprehensive income, refer note D12 b) for accounting policy. These amounts were presented in the
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2018,

Restatement of the valuation of the Invastment in Thinxtra at 1 June 2018 as previously disclosed In the unaudited 30 Septamber2018
consolidated interim financlal statements

Upon re-examining the information available, the Directors consider the 1 June 2018 valuatlon of $12.2m which as noted above relied on
the independent valuation report, based on historical capitaf ralse and limited external transactions dated back te October and November
2017 was not appropriate and should he restated. Accordingly, the valuation reported in the 30 September 2018 financial statements of
$12.2m has been reassessed resulting in a revised valuation of $5.0m of the investment at 1 June 2018, The previously recognised gain of
$7.2m in the 30 September 2018 consolldated interim financial statements is reversed, This restatement will be disclosed in the unaudited
censolidated interim financial statements of the Group for the six manths ending 30 September 2019,

Valuation methodology

In undertaking the restated fair value assessment as at 1 June 2018, it was considered that one single valuation method would not provide
an appropriate result. Accordingly, the Directors have used a range of valuation techniques which provide different scenario outcomes,
These outcomes have thea been assigned a probability based on the available information and Directors’ judgement,

The methodology and overzall outcome is summarised as follows:

Valuation Technitue Indicative View Probability Assigned
A: Discounted cash flow . Most likely 75%
B: Last successful capital raise, October 2017 which raised AS20m Possibie 25%

The valuation was between A$5.25 and A$6.52 per share with z vaiue of A35.89 per share resulting in a restated valuation of $5.0m at 1
June 2018. This is afso consistent with the equity accounted value of the investment as at 1 June 2018,
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Sensitivities on key Inputs

The Directors recognise that the valuation outcomes under each technique are dependent on assurnptions used, The following table
provides an analysis of the impact on the final valuation where key assumptions are changed as described in b) to ¢) below.

Scenarle Assumptions changes Valuation NZ$ change
a} Base case valuation base case 5.0

b} DCF Cash flow is 50% lower than forecast 3.7 (1.3)
¢} DCF Discount rate is 5% higher 4,2 (0.8)

An opposite change in ossumptions would have the equal but opposite effect on the valuation.

Sensitivities on probability weightings assigned

The Directors recognise that the final valuation is degendent on probabilities assigned to the scenario under each valuation technique used.
The following table provides an analysis of the Impact on the final

valuation where the probability weightings are changed. Alternate change in

. e o . . Valuation Technique Base case case  valn NZSm
To pro\..uc?e an 'mdlcatuon aboyt the reliab:_lity of the inputs u§ed in A: Discounted cash flaw 759% s
determining fair value, the Directors classified the fair valuation of 8: Last capital ralse
Thinxtra investment as a level 3 investment, Instruments are classified

s L N . October 2017 25% 15%

as level 3 only if one or more of the significant inputs for the valuation 100% 100%
is not based on observable market data, Valuation NZ$ 50 3o (1.2)

Subsequent Capltal Raise Offers by Thinxtra between September 2018 and March 2019

in September 2018 Thinxtra announced a new capital raise offer aimed at raising A$20m. This offer was not filled with the main impediments
being; the offer price was out of alignment with the maturity of the business; there were anti-dilution rights held by existing security halders
which were an impediment to any new investors; and Thinxtra’s two main shareholders elected not to participate in the capital raise
offering.

A revised limited special offer was announced in March 2019 to raise A$4m. This was expected to aliow Thinxtra to sufficiently develop it's
business in preparation for additional funding to be raised through equity, debt or M&A activity to allow it to achieve breakeven. The
Girectors determined that Rakon would not participate in the March 2019 special offer due to the requirement to prioritise spend in its core
business, This capital raise was successful and A$5m was raised with the offering closing on 18 Agril 2018, In the Directors view this was a
special offer with a placement discount and was not indicative of the fair value of the company.

Valuation of the investment in Thinxtra at 31 March 2019

As set out below, the Directors have determined the valuation range of Thinxtra at 31 March 2019, with a value recognised of $4.6m. In
forming this view, it was recognised that therg Is high level of volatility and judgement required in valuing Thinxtra given its early stage of
business; the new and developing 10T market and ecosystem in which it operates; the volatility in prices achieved by historic capital raises,
it being a private company investment; and the track record of the company achieving it's forecast performance.

Consistent with the revised valuation approach adopted at 1 June 2018, in undertaking the fair value assessment, given the range of
potential outcomes, it was considered that one single valuation method would not provide an appropriate result. Accordingly, the Directors
have used a range of valuation technigues which provide different scenario outcomes. These outcomes have then been assigned a
probability based on the available information and Director's judgernent. The methodology and overall outcome Is summatised as follows:

Valuation Technique Indicative View Probability Assigned
A: Discounted cash flow Likely 46%
B: Last successful capital raise, March 2019 which raised ASSm Likely 30%
C: Replacement cost of assets Likely 30%

The resultant valuation was between A$4.83 and AS6.11 per share with a value of AS5.47 adopted in the 31 March 2019 financial
statements. This has resulted in fair value of $4.6m at 31 March 2019 with the reduction of $0.4m since 1 June 2018 being reflected in other
comprehensive income.

Sensitivities on key inputs

The Directors recognise that the valuation outcames under each technique are dependent on assumptions used. The following table
provides an analysis of the impact on the final valuation where key assumptions are changed as described in b} to d) below:

Scengrio Assumptions changes Valuation N2$ change
a) Base case valuation base case 4.6

b) Biscounted cash flow Cash flow is 50% lower than forecast 3.4 (1.1}
c} Discounted cash flow Discount rate is 102 higher 3.0 {1.5)
dj Replacement cost Replacement cost is 20% lower 3.8 {0.8)

Sensitivities on probabliity weightings assigned

The Directors recognise that the final valuation is dependent on probabilities assigned to the scenario under each valuation technigue used.
The following tahle provides an analysis of the impact on the final valuation where the probability weightings are changed,
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To provide an indication about the reliabifity of the inputs Alternate  changein
used in determining fair value, the Directors classified the fair Valuation Technigue Base case case valn NZ$m
valuation of Thinxtra Investment as a level 3 invastment. A: Discounted cash flow 408 3%
Instruments are classified asfevet 3 only if one or more of the 8: Last capltal raise April 2010 30% 505
significant inputs for the valuation is not hased on ebservable C: Replacement cost 305 2088
market data. 100% 1009

Valuation NZ$ 4.6 4.0 (0.6)

Recognition of net dilution gain in Thinxtra - prior year

Critical accounting estimate

During the year to 31 March 2018, Thinxtra issued convertibla preference shares. As at 31 March 2019 and during the year te 31 March
2018, Rakon held only ordinary Shares in Thinxtra. In calculating Rakon's share of the net assets of its investment in Thinxtra, the Directors
have determined that the convertible preference shares dilute Rakon's investment in Thinxtra.

The key judgement applied was that the Directors concluded that the rights attached to the convertible preferences shires ovar and above
the ordinary shares are protective and not substantive in nature. Therefore, the percentage ownership Rakon holds in Thinxtra is based on
their proportion of shares including all convertible preferance shares, as these shares hold the same voting rights as ordinary shares.

Supporting the above judgement is the fact that Rakon sold ordinary shares in November 2017, shortly after the convertible preference
share issue, at the same price as convertible preference shares were issued. Should the protective rights attached to the convertible
preference shares be triggered, these shareholders would be entitled to up to 1.2 times the issue price of the convertible preference shares,
potentially reducing the net assets available to ordinary shareholders. As noted above the Pirectors judge these to be protective rights that
are not substantive as at 31 March 2018,

Net dilution gain

During the year to 31 March 2018 Thinxtra issued new fully paid shares ata price in excess of what Rakon purchased shares at which resulted
In a significant increase to its net assets. The increased number of shares diluted Rakon’s shareholding percentage. For Rakan, the gain from
Rakon's share of new capital invested outweighed the loss from the dilution in sharehalding. A net gain of $4.8m was recognised in the year
to 31 March 2018,

B5. Non-financial assets and Habilities

BS a) Inventories

Accounting policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (weighted average cost} or net realisable value. Costs comprises direct materials, direct labour
and appropriate proportion of varlable and fixed overhead expenditure, the [atter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses.

Breakdown of inventories

2019 2018

50005 $000s

Raw materials 15,895 8,767
Waorkin progress 17,667 10,896
Finished goods 5,748 4,508
Total inventories 39,310 24,171

Obsolescence

An inventory obsolescence proviston of $5,132,000 (2018: 54,584,000 is included in the inventory figures above. Significant judgements
made in determining the provision include:

*  Ageing of inventory

*  Forecast revenue and likely consumption of inventory

*  Historical revenue and actual consumption of inventory

e Specific identification of items of inventories for which the net realisable value is deemad lower than cast,

During the year inventary of $1,168,000 (2018: $5,141,000) was scrapped, of which $553,000 (2018: $5,141,000} was provided for. The net
amount included in cost of sales from an increase in the chsolescence provision was $1,101,000 [2018: $1,292,000).
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BS b} Intangible assets

Accounting policy
Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income on 2 straight-line basis over the estimated usefu! lives below:

Goodwill Nil
Patents 20 years
Software 2=10years
Product development 5-10years
Assets under course cfconstruction Nil

Software assets and capitalised costs of developing systems are recorded as intangible assets ard amortised unless they are directly related
to a specific item of hardware, and in that case are recorded as property, plant and equipment.

Patents and software

Identifiable intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure on Intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embadied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred. Any research and development taxation credits and
government grant funding for research and development are recognised when eligibility criteria have been met and treated as a reduction
in expenses,

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, is capitalised If the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources to complete development. Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income
as an expense as incurred.

Total capltallsed research and development costs are $6.8m {2018: $7.9m) made up of product development assets and assets under
construction,

Impalrment

Buring the year, specific product development projects and projects in progress were reviewed for recoverabiity based on the expected
cash flows to be generated by the projects. The expected cash flows supported the carrying values and no impalrment was noted.
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Breakdown of intangible asset

At 31 March 2017

Yearended 31 March 2018
Opening net book value
Foreign exchange differences
Additions
Disposals
Amoriisation charge

Amortisation reversal on
disposals

Transfers
Closing net bookamounts

At31 March 2018
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net bookvalue

Yearended 31 March 2019
Opening net book value
Foreign exchange differances

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation charge

Amortisation reversal on
disposals

Transfers

Closing net book amaunts

At31 March 2019
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net bockvalue

Product = Assetsunder
Goodwill Patents Software development construction Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s §000s 5000s
- 458 760 4,456 3,793 9,467
- 46 37 512 42 637
- - 13 114 763 890
- . {248) {41} - (289}
- - {403) (3,435} - {1,838)
- - 248 - - 248
. - 28 898 (926) -
0 504 435 4,504 3,672 9,115
1,846 2,246 8,610 10,264 3,672 27,338
{1,846) {2,442) (8,175) {5,760) - {18,223)
0 504 435 4,504 3,672 9,115
- 504 435 4,504 3,672 9,115
- (2} {6} (25) (4) 37}
1,254 - 73 447 317 2,131
- - (25} {102) {20) {147}
- - {325} (1,712) - (2,037)
- - 22 102 B * 124
- - 117 3,248 (3,365) -
1,284 502 291 6,462 600 9,149
3,140 2,944 8,769 13,832 600 29,285
{1,846} (2,442) {8,478) (7,370} - (20,1363
1,254 502 291 6,462 600 9,149
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B6. Business combination — acquisition of Centum Rakon India Private Limited

On 2 May 2018, the Group acquired the remaining 51% of the issited shares in Centum Rakon India Private Limited {CRI), a previously held
Joint venture which provides products and services to the frequency control industry. Consideration was US$5.5m and the acguisition is
part of the Group's overall manufacturing strategy, providing a low cost manufacturing platform and in addition, access to the local Indian
market in the longer term. Consideration of LS$4,125,000 was paid on 2 May 2018 with U$$1,375,000 payable within 18 months of
acquisition date. The fair value of the US$1,375,000 was estimated based on a discount rate of 5.90%. The deferred consideration has been
revalued at year end to 51,885,000,

BE a) Details of the purchase consideration, the fair value of net assets acquired and goadwill
Purchase price consideration $000s
Cashpaid 5,848
beferred consideration 1,789
Less deemed settlement of pre-existing net trade balances (1,249)
Total purchase price consideration 6,388
Provisional Adjust- Final fair
fair value ments value
The fair value of the assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as $000s $000s 5000s
follows
Cashand cash eqguivalents 1,500 - 1,500
Property, plant and equipment 3,750 - 3,750
Inventories 5,869 125 5,994
Trade and other receivables 5,002 - 5,002
Trade and other payables ' (4,510) - (4,510}
Overdraft {1,320) - {1,320}
Employee benefit obligations (343} {250} {533)
Net deferred tax assets 1,378 37 1,416
Less deemad settlement of pre-existing net trade balances (1,249} - {1,249)
Net identiflable assets acquired 10,078 {88) 9,990
Provisional Adjust- Final
amount ments amount
Re-measurement of previously held 49% equity interast 40005 $000s $000s
Carrying value of equity interest prior to acquisition 2,984 - 2,994
Gain on re-measurement 1,944 {42) 1,902
Re-measured previously held equity nterest 4,938 (a2} 4,896
Net [ossin business combination on previously held equity interest
Gain on re-measurement of previously held equity Interest 1,944 - (42} 1,902
Loss on reclassificatlon of currency translation reserve {2,013) - {2,013)
Net lossin business combination on previously held equity interest ()] (42} (111)
Goodwill on acquisition
Net assets acquired 10,078 {88) 9,9%0
Less fair value of previously held 49% equity interest (4,938} 42 {4,896}
Goodwill on acquisition 1,248 48 1,294
Total purchase consideration 6,388 - 6,388

The pre-existing 49% share of equity which was acquired on 25 March 2008, was re-measured to fair vaiue and the currency translation
reserve relating to pre-existing 49% share of equity was recycled through the profit and toss component of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The goodwill is attributable to synergfes expected to arise. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible far tax purposes, Deferred tax
asset of $568,000 has been recognised in relation to the fair value adjustments.
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Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs of $204,000 are included in administrative expenses in the profit and loss component of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of $4,551,000 and net profit of $1,026,000 to the Group for the peried from 2 May 2018 to 31
March 2013. if the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2018, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit after tax for the year ended 31
March 2018 would have been $4,764,000 and $523,000 respectively. For April 2018, the Group recorded 576,000 equity accounted profit
for the owned 49% equity interest.

Risk

Cl. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions cancerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates wifl, by definitlon, rarely equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be wrong are included in section B and C. Specifically
these are;

. Calculation of inventory obsolescence {note BS a)

+  Estimated useful life of intangible assets (note BS b)

s Expected credit loss provision {note B3 b}

s Thinxtra valuation {note B4 d}

*  Acquisition of CRI {note B6)

s Prior year investment by Siward, attribution and apportionment of proceeds (note B2 b}

. Estimate and judgements not included above are detailed below,

Cia) Impairment of assets

The Group has assessed as at 31 March 2018 whethar any indicaters of impairment exist. In doing so management and the Directors have
considered factors including the current profitability of the Group and the market capitalisation value of the Company in comparison to the
Group's net asset value. Detailed assessments were conducted for Inventory (note 85 a), intangible assets (note BS b), trade and other
receivables (note B3 b) and property, plant and equipment (note D3 a). The Birectors consider the net asset values of the Group to be
appropriate.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group tests annually for indicators of impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note D12 e). The recoverable
amounts of cash generating units have been forecasted based on value-in-use calculations, These calculations require the use of estimates,

These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial forecasts covering a five year period due to product life cycles, pricing
trends and longer term expected currency trends,

Key assumptions used in ‘value in use’ calculations

aic1b] Assumption Range 5 Year CAGR
New Zealand Annual safes growth rate! 5% to 5% 7.1%
Gross margin %2 48% to 56% nfa
France Annual sales growth rate! 2% to 12% 6.0%
Gross margin 62 28% to 30% n/a
India Annual sales growth rate! 5% to 10% 6.8%
Gross margin %? 19% to 21% n/a
China Annual net profit growth rate? 3% to 58% 20.6%
Free cash flow?® 4% to 133% 47.5%

Free cash flow is used in the above tables as the China assets are held through Rakon's investment in associates.

! Sales growth — Management have forecasted sales to grow over the period of the cash flow projection, due to a combination of factors
including industry forecasts for the key market segments In which Rakon operates, future product innovation and estimations of its own
share of the market reflective of the quality of its product range and technelogy advantages. Management have forecast a future increase
in revenues for the NZ, France and India CGUs specifically asa result of its product positioning which is expected to meet the future increased
technology specification that wifl be demanded in the Telecommunications segment.

* Gross margin — Management forecasted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations of market development also taking
into account gradual decline in average selling prices. Anticipated industry trends, product innovations, manufacturing efficiency and raw
material cost improvements have also heen factored into these gross margin assumptions,
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% China, net profit — Management, forecasted net profit based on a combination of factors including industry forecasts for the key market
segments, future product innovation and estimations of its own share of the market reflective of the quality of its product range and
technology advantages.

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the business segment. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks refating to the relevant segments.

Significant estimate: impact of possible chonges in key assumptions
New Zealond CGU

The recoverable amount is estimated to be $47.6m {2018: $43.6m). This exceeds the carrying amount of tha CGU at balance date by $5.7m
(2018: $9.9m). If the sales volumes used in the value-in-use calculation had been 2.0% lower than management’s estimates, the Group
would have recognised an impairment against the carrying amount of net assets of $0.9m. If the gross margin percentage used in the value-
in-use calculation had been 1.0% lower than manageiment’s estimates, the Group would have recognised an impairment against the carrying
amount of net assets of $2.2m. If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 15.0% instead of 13,6%, the recoverable
amount of the CGL would equal its carrying amount.

France CGU

The recoverable amount is estimated to be $21.9m (2018: $30.0m). This exceeds the carrying amount of the CGU at balance date by $2.8m
{2018: $4.4m). I the sales used in the value-in-use calculation had been 2.0% lower than management’s estimates, the Group would have
recognised an Impairment against the carrying amount of net assets of $2.8m. If the gross margin percentage used in the value-in-use
caiculation had been 1.0% lower than management’s estimates, the Group would have recognised an impairment agalnst the carrying
amount of net assets of 34.4m. If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 14.6% instead of 13.5%, the recoverable
amount of the CGU would equal its carrying amount.

India CGU

The recoverable amount Is estimated to be $37.1m (2018: $5.9m). This exceeds the carrying amount of the CGU at balance date by $1.7m
{2018: $3.0m). If the sales used in the value-in-use calculation had been 4.0% lower than managerment’s estimates, no impairment would
result. If the gross margin percentage used In the value-in-use calcufation had been 2.0% lower than management’s estimates, the Group
would have recognised an impairment against the carrying amount of net assets of $1.7m. If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections was 29.3% instead of 27.1%, the recoverabie amount of the CGU would equal its carrying amount.

China CGY

The recoverable amount is estimated to be 59.9m (2018: $13.1m}. This exceeds the carrying amount of the CGU at balance date by 52.8m
(2018: $3.8m). If free cash flow was 10.0% lower than management's estimates, nio impairment would result. If the pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 17.0% instead of 14.8%, the recoverable amount of the CGU would equal its carrying amount.

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below,

Growthrate Discount rate {pre-tax)

2019 2018 2013 2018
New Zealand 1.90% 2,50% 13.60% 14.00%
United Kingdom 2.50% 2.50% 12.10% 11.10%
France 1.30% 2.50% 13.50% 13.00%
India 3.50% 2.50% 27.10% 24.20%
China 2.50% 2,50% 14.80% 14.,20%

Clhb) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income texes in numerous Jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision
for Income taxes and recognition of deferred tax assets in relation to losses. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initiafly recorded, such differences will impact tha income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

2. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks:
. Credit risk
o Liguidity risk

. Market risk

This section presents information about the Group’s exposures to each of the above risks including the Group’s objectives, policies,
precesses for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout these consolidated financial statements.

~ihh
¢
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The Board has overall responsibility for the establishrent and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board has
established the Aedit and Risk Commitiee, which together with the Board, is responsible for developing and rmonitoring the Group's risk
mainagement policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risk adherence te limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group'’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive contrel environment in which all employees understand their roles and otligations.

The Grougp's risk management is predominantly controlled at head office in New Zealand (Group treasury) under palicies approved by the
Board. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interast
rate risk, and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Where all relevant criteria are met, hedge accounting is applied to remove the accounting mismatch between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item. This will effectively result In recognising interest expense at a fixed interest rate for the hedged floating rate loans and
inventory at the fixed foreign currency rate for the hedged purchase.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Recognised financial assets
recasti i
Market risk—foreign exchange and liat.Jllltles -not Cash_ﬂ‘o.w fore as}‘mg Foreign currency forwards
denominated in currency Sensitivity analysis and foreign currency options
units
B vari
Marketrisk—Interest rate r:t;;ksoverdraft atvariable Sensitivity analysis interestrate swaps

Cashand cash equivalents,
Credit risk trade receivables, derivative Aginganalysis Creditratings Creditlimits
financial instruments

Availzahility of committed
Rolling cash flow forecasts creditlines and borrowing
facilities

Borrowings and other

Liuldity risk liabilities

C2a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
abligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers,

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Group’s loss impairment metheod by replacing the incurred loss approach with a forward-looking
Expected Credit Joss (ECL) approach. From 1 April 2018, the Group has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all debt
financial assets aot held at fair value through the profit and loss (FVPL) in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity
Instruments are not subject to impairment under FRS 9.

Trade and othear receivablas
The Group has financial assets of trade receivables from sales of inventory that are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are alse subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless
there has been no significant increase in credii risk since origination, in which case, the allawance is based on the 12 months’ expected
credit loss. .

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the lass rates for the contract assets.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade recelvables

In the priar year, impairment of trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss model. individual recelvables which were known
te be uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other receivables were assessed collectively to determine
whether there was cbjective evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not yet been identified. For these receivables the
estimated impairment losses were recognised in a separate provision for impairment,

Group considered that there was evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators were present:
»  significant financial difficulties of the debtor

*  probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial raarganisation, and

+  default or late payments {more than 30 days overdue). @W@
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Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were written off agalnst the provision when there was no expectation of
recovaring additional cash.

The restatement on transition to IFRS 9 as a result of applying the expected credit risk model was immaterial.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual eharacteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers operate, has less influence on credit risk. The
Group's most significant customer accounts for 10% (2018: 10%) of external revenue with the next most significant customer accounting
for 0% (2018: 7%) of external revenue, The Group’s most significant customer accaunts for $11.2m {2018: $10.1m}) revenue, Is in the
telecommunications segment and is supplied out of India and New Zealand.

The Group has established credit policies under which each new customer is analysed Individually for credit-worthiness before payment
and delivery terms and conditions are agreed. The Group's review includes trade references and external ratings, where appropriate and in
some cases bank references. Purchase limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount; these [imits
are raviewed perfodically. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark credit-worthiness may transact with the Group only en =
prepayment basis,

Credit quality of financlal assats
Exposure te credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March is set
out helow ether than for derivatives which is shown in note B2 b).

Carrying amount

2019 2018

5000s $000s

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {note D2 b} 18 2113
Trade and other receivables (hote B3 b) 40,487 33,211
Cash and cash equivalents {note D2 a) 4,719 10,364
Forward exchange contracts and callar options used for hedging (note D2 b) 565 1,412
Total exposure to credit risk 45,790 43,098

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at 31 March by currency of denomination Is set out in note B3 b).

C2 b} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet Its financiat obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing
fiquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities wien due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including
the servicing of financial ebligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such
as natural disasters. In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit;

Current year
On 30 Novernber 2018 the facifities with ASB were restructured and increased. At 31 March 2019 the following facifities were in place:

e $15.5m overdraft imit. Interest is payable at the ASB Corporate indicator Rate plus applicable margin. Also refer to note C3 b).
The increase compared to the previcus facility relates to additional working capital required for growth in the
Telecommunications business supplied out of India and New Zealand. This overdraft was drawn for the purchase of Rakon India.

Facllities are secured by a general security deed over all the present and future assets and undertakings of the Group and the Group has
agreed to certain capital requirements, restrictions on dividend distributions and capital expenditure. The financial covenants include net
tangible assets to total tangible assets, net dabt to EBITDA and EBITDA to interest. Interest is based on wholesale market interest rates,
bank margin and applicable line fee. The Company was in compliance with all required financial covenants during the year.

Prior year

*  51.7m cash advance facility with ASB. The interest rate is reset every 30 - 50 days and interest is payabie based on the bank
bilt rate for that interest period, the term funding premium and the applicable margin.

¢ $9.8m overdraft limit. Interest is payable at the ASB Corporate [ndicator Rate plus applicable margin. The $2.0m increase
compared to the previous facility relates to additional warking capital for the Raken India business and requires the release of
securitles held by CRI's current banks within four months of the date of the acquisition date.
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The following table shows the contractual undiscountad cash flow maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Carrying 6 monthsor

31 March 2019 amount less  6-12 menths 1-Zvyears 2=5years
5000s $000s $000s 50005 50008

Financial liakilltles
Derivatives {note D2 b) 1,288 {750) (343) (195) -
Trade and other payables (note D2 d) 26,398 {26,398) - - -
Bank ovardrait (note D2 2} 11,501 (31,501} - - -
Finance leases {note D2 g) 817 (405) {412) - -
Total financial Habilitles 40,004 [39,054) {755) (195) -

Carrying 6 monthsor

31 March 2018 amount lass  &~12 months 1-2years 2-5years
$000s 50008 $000s $000s $000s
Financial tigbilities
Derivatives {note D2 b} 313 (99) {10) (78) [1.26)
Trade and other payables {note D2 d) 19,107 (19,107) - - -
Bank overdraft (note D2 ¢} 2,824 {2,824} - B -
Finance [eases (note D2 e) 31 {15} (16} - -
Total financial Habilities 22,275 {22,045) (26) (78} {126}
C2c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial Instruments. The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and contrel market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.

The Group enters into derivatives in the ordinary course of business and also incurs finandial Habifitles, in order to manage market risks. All
such transactions are carried out within the guidalines set by the Board and Audit and Risk Committee. Generally, the Group seeks to apply
hedge accounting in order to manage volatility in the Statement of Comprehensiva income.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in 2 currenicy ather than the respective functional
currencies of the Group's entities, primarily New Zealand Dollars (NZD), Sterling {GBP) and the Euro (EUR}. The currencies in which these
sales and purchases transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars (USD), Japanese Yen (IPY), Indian Rupees (INR}, NZD, GBP and
EUR. The Group uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts and collar options to hedge its currency risk.

Exposure to currency risk

The table below summarises the foreign exchange exposure on the net monetary assets of the Group against its respective functional
currency, expressed In NZD,

usp EUR GBP ey INR

$000s $000s $000s 50005 50005

31 March 2019 17,397 {1,533} (460} {5,751} 1,205

31 March 2018 16,155 asp 165 {617} -

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
Average rate Reporting date rate

NZID 2013 2018 2019 2018
Usp 0.6768 0.7149 0.6806 0.7277
EUR 0.5887 0.6118 0.6044 0.5858
GBP 0.5188 0.5398 0.5154 0.5134
INR 47.4790 46.7956 46,9870 46,9568

IPY 75.1127 79.2096 75.1800 76.8400
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Sensitivity analysis

Underlying exgposures

A 10% weakening of the NZD against the following currencies at 31 March would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or foss by
the amounts shown below. Based on historical movements, a 10% increase ar decrease in the NZD is considered to be a reasanable estimate,
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis

for 2018,

10% weakening

use
£EUR
GBP
1Y
INR

2019 2018 2018 2013
Equity  Profitorloss Equity  Profitorloss
$000s $000s $000s $000s
1,933 1,933 1,795 1,795
{170} (170) 94 94
(s1) (51) 18 18
(638} {639) (69) {69)
134 134 v -

A 10% strengthening of the NZD against the above currencies at 31 March would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amount shown above, on the basis that afl other variables remain constant,

Forward foreign exchange contracts

A 10% weakening of the purchased currencies below against the forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at 31 March, would have
increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all ather varfables, in particular
interast rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.

2018 2018
Fair value Equity Profitarloss Fairvalue Equity  Profitorlass
$000s 5000s $000s $000s 0005 $000s
Forward foreign exchange contracts - Cash flow hedge
Met buy NZD sell USD 5,811 {5,811) - 1,284 (2,719} -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading
Net buy NZDr sell EUR 28) 231 231 159 {353) {353}
Net buy NZsell GP8 20 277 277 {81} (472} {472}
Net buy NZsell INR 119 (4986) (496) - - -

interast rate risk

Under the Group's Treasury Management Policy, a minimum of 50% of term debt is required to be on fixed interest rates. The Group adopts
a policy to manage its exposure to interest rates by considering fixed interast rate swap agreements.

Profile

At 31 March the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial Instruments was:

Interest rate risk

Varlable rate instruments
Financial assets (note D2 a)
Financial liabilities

Net variable rate instruments

Fixed rate Instruments

Financial liabllities

Net fixed rate instruments

2019 2018
$000s $000s
4,719 10,364

{11,501} {2,824}

{6,782) 7,540
(176) {224)
{176} {224)
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Sensitivity analysis

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at 31 March would have increased {decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis for 2019 was
performed on the same basis as 2018.

2019 2019 2018 2018

Equity  Profitorloss Equity  Profitorloss

$000s $000s 3000s 5000s

Variable rate instruments {68} (68} {28} (28)
Fixed rate instrumeants 76 76 58 58

A decrease of 100 basis puints in interest rates at 31 March would have the opposite impact to what is shown above.

C3. Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a capital base (made up of debt and equity) 5o as to sustain future development of the business. There
were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

C3a) Current year

The Group is reliant on its bank facility {refer note D2 e) and equity as the principal seurces of capital management. The ahility of the Group
te remain in compliance with its banking covenants has been considered by the Directors in the adoption of the gaing concern assumption
during the preparation of these financial statements.

C3 b} Bank facilities

On 30 Novernber 2018 the facilities with ASB were restructured and increased, refer note C2 b).

Facilities are secured by a general security deed over all the present and future assets and undertakings of the Group and the Group has
agreed to certain capital requirements, restrictions on dividend distributions and capital expenditure. The financial covenants include net
tangible assets to total tangible assets, net debt to EBITDA and EBITDA to interest, Interest is based on wholesale market interest rates,
bank margin and applicable line fee.

Compliance with bank covenants is dependent en the Group's financial performance. The Directors have approved a five year forecast and
business valuation impairment model. The Directors forecast that the Group will trade at levels appropriate to manage its working capital
requirements and meet its bank covenants for the period of at least 12 months from the date of authorisation of these financkal statements.
The Directors have considered the achievabiity of the assumptions underlying those forecasts, including forecast sales and positioning the
business for the future, Forecasts indicate that the Group will meet all covenants and net cash requirements for at least 12 months from
the date of authorisation of these financial statements and that there is sufficient headroom to allow for downward sensitivities, should the
actual revenue and margin levels be lower than forecast.

D. Other Information

D1. Other profit and loss infermation

b1 a) Summary of impairments

The Group has assessed as at 31 March 2019 whether any indicators of impairment exist. In undertaking such an assessment, ho indicators
of impairment were identified in the current year.

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Property, plant & equipment {note D3 a} - 120
Total impairment - 120
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B1 b) Employee benefits expenses

Accounting policy
Employee entitlements to salaries, wages and annual leave to be settled within 12 months of balance date represent present obligations

resufting from employees’ services provided up to the balance date, These are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration
rates that the Group expects to pay.

Breakdown of amployee benefits expenses

2019 2318

50005 $000s

Wages and salaries 43,872 37,216

Contributions to defined contribution plans 644 570

Increase/{decrease)in liability for French retirement indemnity plan (note 03 b) 265 (23)

Increase in liability for long service leave (note D3 b) 65 114

Redundancy expense (note D3 b) - 135

Emplovee share scheme (note DS) - -3

Total employee benefits expenses 44,846 38,044
Dic) Net finance (costs)/income

Accounting policy

Interast income is recognisad in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Breakdown of finance {costs)/incoma

2019 2018
$000s $000s
Financial income

Interest income 37 3

Financial expenses
Interest expense on bank borrowings {455} (492)
Interest on deferred consideration on acquisition -Raken India {100) -
Unwinding oflease make good provision discount (12} {12}
Total financial expenses {871) {504}
Net finance costs (534} {501}

D1 d} Income tax expense

Accounting policy
Income tax on the net profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Incorne tax is recognised in the profit and loss component of

the Statement of Comprehensive Income, with the exception of other items that relates to other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Breakdown of income tax expense

2019 2018

5000s 5000s

Currenttax {1,879 {616)
Deferred tax expense (note D4) (231) {382)
Income tax expense (2,110) {998)
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The tax on the Group's result before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise usingthe weighted ave rage tax
rate applicable to the results of the cansolidated entities,

2019 2018

Reconciliation ofincome tax expense $0005 $000s
Profit before tax 5,474 10,997
Tax calcuiated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries {1,540) {2,943}
Forelgn exchange difference inincome tax calculation - 5
Expenses not deductible {276} {73)
Non-taxable income 684 1,890
Expenses deductible fortax purposes 34 18
Prioryearadjustment 46 296
Associate and joint venture results reported net oftax 95 {541)
Movement in deferred tax subsquent to business combination (427} -
Recognition and utilisation of previcusly unrecognised tax fosses 347 610
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised (1,073} (270)
income tax expense {2,110} (998)

The welighted average applicable tax rate was 3995 (2018: 9%).

D2. Other financial assets and liabilities

D2 a) Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting poiicy

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, call deposits, and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown separately from borrowings on the balance sheet.

2019 2018

$000s $000s

Cashatbankand onhand 4,719 10,364
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes ofthe

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents . 4,719 10,364

Bank overdraits {note D2 &) {11,501) (2,824)

Total cash and cash equivalents {6,782) 7.540

D2 b} Derivative financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongeing business operatlons. To mitigate the risks the Group uses derivative financial
instruments such as cross-currency swaps and interest rates swaps. When the Group designates certain derivatives to be part of a hedging
refationship, and they meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedges are classified as cash flow hedges.

Derivative financial instruments are held for risk and asset management purposes only and not for the purpose of speculation. The Group’s
tisk management strategy and how it is applied te manage risk is explained further in note C2.

The following table sets out the aotional amount of derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship-by-relationship type as welt
as the related carrying amounts.
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2019 2019 2018 2018

Assets Liabtlities Assets Liabilities

$000s $000s $000s $000s

interest rate swaps —cash flow hedge - 100 - 126
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~cash flow hedges 274 837 1,242 -
Forward foreign exchange collar option— cash flow hedges 251 256 170 96
Total derivative financial Instruments 565 1,193 1,412 222
Less: non-current forward foreign exchange —cash flow hedges 258 343 334 78
Current -derivative financial instruments 307 850 1,078 144
Forward foreign exchange contracts —held for trading 19 95 211 91
Total - derivative financial instruments ’ 326 945 1,289 235

Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or lability. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liahility if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months ar as a current asset or liability if the maturity of the hedged
item is less than 12 months.

Forward foraign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2029 were $42,421,152 (2018
$33,624,000). The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denaminated in foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates
during the next 24 months. Gains and losses recopnised in the hedging reserve in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts will be
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, In the period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interast rate swap contracts

At balance date, one interest rate swap was i place with $3m of borsowings fixed at 4.17%, expiring June 2020. The interest rate swap,
with a fair value of -$100,000 (2018: -$145,000), is exposed to fair value movements if interest rates change.

D2¢) Recognised fair value measurements

Derivative financtal instruments

Derivative financlal Instruments are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any transaction cosis on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date.

All derivatives are recognised as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from the change In falr value of derivatives, except those that qualify as effective cash flow hedges, are Immediately recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Reclassifications of financial instruments on adoption of IFRS §

On the date of initial application, 1 April 2018, the financial Instruments were as follows, with any reclassifications noted:

Measurement category Carrying amount
Criginal {IAS39)  New{IFRS9) Original New Difference
$000 $000 $000
Non-cirrent financial asset
Derlvative financial Instruments -Cash flow hedges FVOC) £vocl 334 334 -
Trade and other recelvables ’:u";:msed ?:;:'ﬁse‘i 2,716 2,716 .
Current financial assets
Derivative financlal instruments - Held for trading FVPL FVPL 211 211 -

Amortised Amortised

Trade and other raceivables 28,355 23,395 -
cost cost

Cash and cash equivalents .::::rtlsed ::::msw 10,364 10,364 -

Dertvative financial instruments - cash flow hedges Fvact Fvaci 1,078 1,078 -
Current firanciat lHabikities

Derivative financial instrumients ~Held for trading FVPL FVPL 91 a1 -

Derivative financial instrements «Cash flow hedges PVOCH VO 144 144 -
Non-currantfinanclal liabllitles .

Derivative financial instruments - Cash flow hedges FVOCH FVOCI 78 78 -

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s has elected to present fair value gains and losses -
on equity investments in other comprehengive income (OC), there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the
profit and Joss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised zs other
income in the profit and foss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group's right to recefve payments are
established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss {FVPL) are recognised in other gains/{losses} In
the profit and loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI} are not reportad separately from other changes in fair
value,

Derivatives and hedging

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges is recognised {including related tax impacts) through OClin the cash
flow hedge reserve in equity. The ineffective portion is recoghised immediately in the Statement Comprehensive Income. The balance of
the cash flow hedge reserve in refation to each particular hedge Is transferred to the profit or loss In the period when the hedged item
affects profit or lass. Hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no
langer meets the criterfa for hedge accounting. The cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the profit or loss.

Hedpe ineffectivenass

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assassments
to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.

For hedges of foreign currency purchases, the Group enters into fedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument
match exactly with the terms of the hedged item. The Group therefore performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness. |f changes in
circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item such that the critical terms no tonger match exactly with the critical terms of the hedging
instrument, the Group assesses these terms that no longer match to asses hedge effectiveness.

tn hedges of foreign currency purchases, ineffectiveness may arise if the timing of the forecast transaction changes from what was ariginalty
estimated, or if there are changes in the credit risk of the derivative tounterparty.

The Group enters Into interast rate swaps that have similar critical tarms as the hedged item, such as reference rate, reset dates, payment
dates, maturities and notional amount. The Group does not hedge 100% of its loans, therefore the hedged item is identified as a proportion
of the outstanding loans up to the notlonal amount of the swaps. As alt critical terms matched during the year, the economic relationship
was 100% sffective.

Hedge ineffectiveness for interest rate swaps is assessed using the same principles as for hedges of forelgn currency purchases, It may
occur due to:

*  the credit value/debit value adjustment on the interest rate swaps which Is not matched by the loan, and E

*  differencesin critical terms between the interest rate swaps and loans.

There was ng ineffectiveness during 2019 or 2018 in relation to the interest rate swaps.
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During the year, the following amounts were recognised in profit or loss in relation to forgign currency transactions and interest rate swaps:

2019
5000s
Met forelgn exchange loss included in sales {note D5) 591
Net gain on foreian currency forwards not qualifying as hedges included in other gains (Note B2c) 46
Effacts of hedge accounting on the financial position and performance
The effects of the foreign currency refated hedging instriments on the Group’s financial position and performance are as follows:
2019 2018 2019
$000s 5000s $000s
Forelgn Foreign
currency currency  Interestrate
aptions forwards SWaps
Naotional amount 32,940 42,421 3,000
Maturity date MaY-19 to APR-19 to JUN-20
aturity da SEP-20 0CT-20 "
Hedge ratio 11 1:1 1:1
Change inintrinsic value of outstanding hedginginstruments (31} - -
Weighted average strike rate for the year:
GRP/USD 1.34 - -
NZD/USD 0.69 - -
Weighted average contractrate for the year:
NZO/USD - 0.74 -
GBPJUSD - 1.33 -
EUR/USD - 1.14 -
INR/USD - 71,56 -
D2d) Trade and other payables

Accounting policy

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method,

Breakdewn of trade and other payables

2019 2818

$000s 4$000s

Trade pavables 13,439 7,015
Amaounts due to related parties (note D9 b) 468 1,874
Employee entitlements 8,308 7,803
Accrued expenses 3,583 1,839
GST/VAT payable - 576
Total trade and other payables 26,398 19,107

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are assumed the same as their fair valies due to their short term nature.

D2 e} Borrowings

Accounting policy

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest
bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount, recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method.
Arrangement fees are amortised over the term of the loan facility.
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Borrowlngs are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settfement of the liability for at least 12
months after balance date.

Breakdown of borrowings

2019 2018
$000s $000s
Current

Obligations under finance lease 405 31
Other borrowings 62 67
Bank overdrafts 11,501 2,824
Current borrowings 11,975 2,922

MNon-current
Obligations under finance lease 412 -
Non-current borrowings 412 -

Bank borrowings

During the year bank borrowings were restructured {refer note C2 b}, The average interest rate during the year on this facility was 5.15%
{2018: 5.97%).

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are secured by first mortgage over all the undertakings of Rakon Limited and any other wholly owned
present and future subsidiaries,

The exposure of the Group’s bank boreowings 1o interest rate changes and the contractual re-pricing dates at the balance dates are as

follows:
2019 2018
$000s $000s
& months or less 11,501 2,922
Tetal bank barrowings including overdraft 11,501 2922

D3. Other non-financial assets and liabilities

D3 a} Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
Initial recording ond subsequent measurement

ttems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Tha cost of purchased
praperty, plant and equipment is the value of the consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other directly attributable costs,
which have heen Incurred in bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for their intended service. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant or equipment.

Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant or equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when
that cost is incurred, only when it Is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost

of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income as an expense when
incurrad.

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold fand, is calculated on a straight line basis so as to expense the cost of
the assets to their expected residual values over their useful lives as follows:

Land

Nil
Bulldings 15—-20years
Leasehold improvements 3-25years
Comgputer hardware 1-10vyears
Plant and equipment 1-20vyears
Furniture and fittings 3-20vyears
Assets under course of construction Nil
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each batance date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the praceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other
gains/{losses) — nat’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Breakdown of property, plant and equipment

Assets
Leasehold under
Landand  improve- Plantand Computer construct-
buildings ments equipment hardwara Other on Total
50005 $000s $000s $000s 5000s 5000s $000s
Year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net bookvalue 529 2,055 7,546 273 351 1,991 12,745
Foreign exchange differences - 82 173 20 7 82 374
Additicns - 121 1,159 324 162 1,507 3,273
Disposals - (3,061) {3,243) (434} (78) (13} {6,827)
Depreciation charge - [(398) {1,809) {250) 47} - {2,504}
Depreciation reversal on dispasals - 2,390 3,158 434 58 - 6,540
Impairment - - (94) - - {26) {1209
Transfers - 27 553 11 1 (592} -
Closing net book amounts 529 1,716 7,443 378 466 2,949 13,481
At 31 March 2018
Cost 4,887 7,450 80,725 5,040 2,480 2,975 103,557
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment {4,358} {5,734)  {73,282) (4,662) (2,014} {26) {90,076}
Net bookvalue 529 1,716 7,433 378 466 2,949 13,481
Year ended 31 March 2019
Openingnet bookvalue 519 1,716 7,443 378 466 2,949 13,481
Foreign exchange differences {4) {35) {54) {12) {2%) {40} {166)
Additions - 552 2,414 728 56 2,467 6,217
Additions on acquisition - 98 3,540 4 79 28 3,749
Disposals - - (667) {29) 5) (76} (777)
Depreciation charge - (470} {2,940) {292) (63) - {3,765)
Depreciation reversal on disposals - - 627 28 - .- 655
Transfers - 414 643 20 7 (2,084) -
Closing net bookamounts 525 2,275 11,0086 825 519 4,244 19,394
At 31 March 2019
Cost 4,883 8,473 86,601 5,751 2,586 4,270 112,580
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment {4,358) [6,204) {75,595} (4,926) {2,077 (26)  {83,186)
Net bookvalue 528 2,275 11,006 828 519 4,244 19,394
D3 b) Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Accounting policies

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
itis probable that an cutflow of econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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Retirement provision

The Group's net obligation In respect of the French retirement indemnity plan is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation s calculated using the projected unit credit method and is
discounted to its present value and the fair value of any refated assets is deducted. The French retirement indemnity plan entitles permanent
French employees to a [ump sum on retirement. The payment is dependent on an employee’s final salary and the number of years of service
rendered,

French employees are entitled to a retirement pay-out once they have met specific criteria. This is a one off payment based on service time
at retirement date. A provision has been created to recognise this cost taking in consideration the time served, probability of attainment
and discount rates. An actuarial valuation was performed at 31 March 2019,

Long service leave

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service leave is the amount of future berefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods. The obligaticn is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present
value,

New Zealand employees are entitled to [ong service leave after the completion of 10 years’ continuous service, In the form of special holidays
and aliowance. A provision has been created to recognise this cost, taking into consideration the time served, probability of attainment and
discount rates.

Legse make good

Rakon is required to restore the leased premises at Mt Wellington, Auckland, New Zealand to their original condition at the end of the
respective lease tarms. A provision is recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to remove any leasehold
improvements. These costs have been capitalised as part of the cost of leasehold improvements and are amortised over the lease terms.

Restructure provision

During 2017 a proposal for re-organisation was discussed with the Work Inspection Administration and Workers Council in France and
communicated to the employees of Rakon France SAS as a plan to restructure. During the year, the restructure plan was concfuded.

Breakdown of provisions for other Habilities and charges

Retirement . Restructure  Lease make Total
provision  Longservice leave provision good
50005 . 50005 40008 $000s $000s
At 31 March 2017 1,241 qi7 33 628 3,819
Charged/({credited) to the statement of comprehensive
income {23) 114 159 12 262
Used during the year {109) (61} (643) - {Bi5)
Foreign Exchange 337 - 92 - 429
At31March 2018 2,146 470 439 640 3,695
Charged/{creditad)to the statement of
comprehensive income 265 65 . 12 342
Used duringtha year - (72} [438) - (511)
Forelgn exchange {80} - - 15 (65)
At31March 2019 2,331 463 - 667 2,461
Reprasentad by
Current pertion 154 317 - - 471
Nan-current partion 2,177 146 - 667 2,980
Total provistonsfor other liabllities and charges 2,331 463 - 6567 3,461
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D4, Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when thare is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Netdeferred tax asset

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account js s folfows:

QOpening balance
Foreign exchange differences
Losses transferred to subsidiaries
Deferred taxon cash flow hedge
Acgquisition of subsidiaries
ncome statement expense (note D1 d)
Closing balance

2018 2018
50003 $000s
7,352 5,906

{1,069) (284) «
6,283 5,662

2019 2018
$000s 50005
5,662 5,668

(3} 112
{209} {389
495 {347}
568 -

(231} {382)
6,283 5,662

The movement In deferred Income tax assets and liabilities durlng the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same jurisdiction, is as follows:

At31 March2017
(Charged)/credited to profit or toss

Losses transferred to subsidiaries
Charged toequity

Foreign exchange difference

At31 March 2018
{Charged)/credited to profitor loss
Losses transferred to subsidiaries
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Charged to equity
Foreign exchange difference

At 31 March 2019

Property, Future
plant & Employee Income tax
equipment Intangibles benefits Other' benefit Total
$0005 $000s $000s 5000s $000s $000s
223 . 414 3,012 3,019 6,668
{180) - 88 {291} 1 (382)
_ - - - {389} (389)
- - - (347) - (247}
5 - - 107 - 112
48 - 502 2,481 2,631 5,662
(321) - 149 (138} 79 {231}
- - . . {208) (209}
- n - 568 - 568
B - - 496 - 496
- - - (3} - ]
(273} - 651 3,404 2,501 6,283

 Includes deferred tax arising from financial instruments (cash flow hedges) and inventory provisioning.

At balence date Rakon timited had total tax losses of $26,743,000 (2018: $29,266,000) of which 58,908,000 {2018: $6,396,000) zre
recagnised in deferred income tax assets. Accardingly, $17,835,000 {201.8: $15,501,000) of tax losses have not been recognised in deferred
income tax assets. Rakon Limited's tax losses have no expiry date. During the year Rakon Limited recognised tax losses of $1,712,000 {2018:
$2,180,000) which were not previously recognised in deferred income tax assets, These were fully utilised against current year taxable
income. Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses to the extent that the related tax benefit is expected to be realised through

future taxable profits,
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5. Other reserves

Forelgn Other
currency comprehensive
translation Hedging  Share option income
resasve reserve reserve revaluation Total
50005 $000s $000s S000s $000s
At31 March 2017 (27,478) 1,162 3,056 - {23,260)
Cash flow hedges
Fair value gains/{losses) inyear - (930) - - {930)
Tax on fair value gains - 260 . - 260
Transfers tosales - 558 - - 558
Tax on transfers to Income tax expense - (156) - - {156}
Subsidlaries 2,982 - - - 2,582
Associates and joint venture {216) “ - - {216}
Fair value of share options issued - - 8 - 8
At32 March 2018 (24,712) 894 3,064 - (20,754)
Cash flow hedges
Falrvatue gains/{losses)in year - {1,221} - - {1,221)
Costofhedge - 31 - - 31
Changes in fair value ofequitvinvestmenﬁs at fairvalue . . } @54 (a54)
threugh other comprehensive income - Thinxtra
Tax on fair value losses - 342 - - 342
Transfers to sates - (591) - - {591}
Tax on transfers to Income tax expense - 165 - - 165
Subsidiaries 1,330 - - - 1,330
Assoclates and Joint venture (1) - - - {1)
At31March 2019 (23,383) {330} 3,064 {asa) (21,153)

D6. Contributed equity

D6 a) Share capital

Accounting policy

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in eyuity as

a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

At 31 March 2019 the tetal number of ordinary shares, including treasury shares, is 229,055,272 shares {2018: 229,055,272) made up as

follows:

. 226,961,983 are fully paid shares (2018: 226,961,983)

® 321,972 unpaid ordinary shares were on issue and held in trust on behalf of participants in the Rakon Share Plan {2018: 321,972)

« 4,771,317 unpaid ordinary shares were held by Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited for future aliocation to participants {2018;

3,774,317}
At 31 March 2019, the share capital remained unchanged at $181,024,000.

D7. Contingencies

Prior to acquisition, Rakon India has received income tax assessments, which are in dispute. The Directors of Rakon India betieve the
positions are likely to be upheld and accordingly no provision was made in Rakon India’s financial statements. The helow summarises the
potential impacts on Raken Indla’s tax balances if the assessments are epheld, and in which case, the exiting joint venture partner will

assume 51% of the Hability,

Income taxes

2011/12 - an increase in taxable income of $1.6m (tax value $750,000}
2013/14 ~ no increase in taxable income (tax value $480,000)

Indirect taxes

December 2010/ August 2012 — excess input credit availed (tax value $840,000)
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D8. Commitments

D8 a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance date but not yet incurred is $194,000 (2018; $433,000),

D8 h) Leases

Accounting policy

The Group Is the lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownershiyp are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases {net of any Incentives received from the lessor}) are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income an a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achleve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assetand the lease term ifthere Is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownershlp by the end of the lease term.

Finance fease — Group as lessee

2019 2018
$000s $000s
No later than L year 405 31
Laterthan 1yearandnolaterthan 5 years 412 -
Total minimum lease payments 817 31
Less amounts representing finance charges (26} {1}
Present value of minimum lease payments 741 30
Included inthe financial statements as
Current borrowings (note D2 e} 405 31
MNon-current borrowings (note D2 e) 412 -
Total finance lease included in borrowings 817 31

Operating lease commitmants — Group as lessee

The Group leases various factories, offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between
1and 7 years and the majority of [ease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate,

The Group also leases motor vehicles under operating lease agreements. The lease terms are for 3 years. The lease expenditure is charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.,

The future aggregate minimum Jease payments under non-canceliable operating leases are as :

2019 2018
5000s $600s
Nolaterthan 1 year 2,689 2,155
Latarthan 1 yearand nolaterthan S years 6,755 5,904
Laterthan 5 years 938 1,640
Total non<cancellable operating ieases 10,382 9,699
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DY. Related party information

No amounts owed by a related party have been written off or forgiven during the year. Related party transactions were transacted at arm's

length.
D9 a) Key management compensation
2019 2018
$000s $000s
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3,767 3,437
Share based payments - 15
Total kéy management compensation 3,767 3,452
P9 b} Transactions and year end balances
2019 2018
$000s $000s
Sales tojeint venturg, Centum Raken India Private Limited - 125
Purchases from joint venture, Centum Rakon India Private Limited {1,284) {13,204}
Purchases from associate, Chengdu Shen-Timemaker Crystal Technology Co. Limited (233} {243}
Engineering support charges to joint venture, Centum Rakon India Private Limited - 47
Net transactions {1,517) {13,275)
Receivables:
Centum Rakon India Private Limited - 64
Rakon HX Limited 139 93
139 157
Payahles:
Centum Rakon india Private Limited - 1,858
Chengdu Shen-Timemaker Crystal Technology Co. Limited 232 -
232 1,858
Following are sales and purchases to/from Siward Crystal Technologies Co. Limited
Sales 210 190
Purchases {236) {174)
Engineering support services - 115
Net transactions (26} 131
Receivables from Siward Crystal Technologies Co. Limited 210 150
Payables to Siward Crystal Technologies Co. Limited 236 i6
P10, Earnings per share
D10 a) Basic

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Group, by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares on issue during the year,

2019 2018

000s 000s

Weighted average number of ordinary shares onissue (note D6 a) 226,962 226,862
Continuing operations

Earnings attributable to equity holders of the Group (50005} 3,364 9,939

Basic earnings per share {cents per share) 1.5 4.4
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D10 b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: restricted ordinary shares and
share options.

2019 2018
000s 000s
Weighted average number ofordinary shares on issue (note D6 a) 226,962 226,962
Adjustments for dilutive potential ordinary shares (restricted ordinary shares and
. 322 3,622
share options)
Weighted average nuraber of ordinary shares for difuted earnings pershare 227,284 230,584
Continuing operations
Earnings attributable to equity holders ofthe Group {$000s) 3,364 9,999
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 1.5 4.3
D11, Share based payments
D11 a) Accounting policy

The Group's management awards qualifying employees’ bonuses, in the form of share options and conditicnal rights to redesmable ordinary
shares, from time to time, on a discretionary basis. These are subject to vesting conditions and their fair value is recognised as an employee
benefit expense with a carresponding increase in other reserve equity over the vesting period. The fair value determined at grant date
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions, such as the requirement to remain in employment with the Group, Non-market
vesting conditions are included in the assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest and the number of redeemable
ordinary shares that are expected to transfer. At each balance date the estimate of the number of options expected to vest and the number
of redeemable ordinary shares expected to transfer is revised and the impact of any change in this estimate is recognised In the $tatement
of Comprehensive Income with a corresponding entry to equity. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital when the options are exercised, or the conditional rights to redeemable ordinary shares are transferred,

D11 b} Rakon Share Plan

In March 2006, Rakon Limited established a share plan to enable selected emplovees of Rakon Limited to acquire shares in the Company
through the plan trustee, Rakon £50P Trustee Limited.

Under the terms of the share plan, 2,759 ordinary shares were issued at deemed market value at that time to Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited
to hold on behalf of the participating employees. Following a share split on 13 April 2006, the resuiting number of shares under this ptan
was 859,137, All shares issued to Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited have been allocated. The shares rank equally in all respects with alf other
ordinary shares issued by the Company. The outstanding loan balance provided by Rakon Limited to participating employees in respect of
these shares totals $195,000 (2018: $195,000). Loans are provided on an interest free basis and the employee may repay all or part of the
loan at aay time. No repayments were due at 31 March 2019 (2018: nil). The Trust Deed makes provision for the Company to require
repayment of the loans In certain circumstances.

As at 31 March 2019, 321,572 (31 March 2018: 321,972) shares were held by Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited.

Shares Issued under the share plan are held on trust by Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited. A participating manager may request the trustee to
transfer the relevant shares to him or her, provided the loan to that manager has been repaid in full,

The Company may remove and appoint trustees at any time. The Directors and shareholders of Rakon ESOP Trustee Limited are Bryan
Mogridge and Bruce lrvine,

Shares held by the share plan represent approximately 0.14% of the Company's total shares on Issue as at balance date (2018: 0.14%,),

Di1¢) Rakon Employee Share Option Scheme (2015}

D'uring the year, no options were exercised and all remaining options fapsed as the banchmark share price was not achieved. The welghted
avarage fair value of options granted of $0.018 per option was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The significant inputs
into the model were the following: weighted average share price of $0.25 at the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 15%,
dividend vield of 0%, an average expected option life of 2 years and an annual risk-frea interest rate of 4%, The volatility was measured at
the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns, based on statistical analysis of dallv share prices from the 12 months
precading luly 2014. There have been no allocations since July 2014,



Rakon Limited

2018 2018

Option Number of Number of

Price Options Options

Opening balance B 3,300,000 3,300,000

Granted 0.25 - -

Cancelled 0.25 - -

Lapsed - (3,300,000} -

Closing halance 0.25 - 3,300,000

2019 20618

Brercise Benchmark Numberof Numberof

price price Options Options

Yearended 31 March 0.25 0.3 - 3,300,000
Diz. Summary of other significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financlal statements have been set out in sections B to
D. Additional relevant policies are detailed below and have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess otherwise stated.

D12 a) Basis of preparation

The Company is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is a FMC reparting entity under Part 7 of the Financial Markets Conduct Act
2013. The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 7 of the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013 and the N2X {Main Board) Listing Rules.

‘These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally
Acceptad Accounting Practice {NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ
IFRS), cther New Zealand accounting standards and authoritative notices that are applicable to entities that apply NZ IFRS. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS). The Group is a profit-oriented entity for the
purposes of complying with NZ GAAP. These financial statements comprise Rakon and its subsidiaries.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for: derivative financial instruments —measured at fair value,
and equity instruments — measured at fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and Habilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from
these estimates, refer to section Ci.

D12 b} Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of awnership.

Fair value estimates

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement, or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. Technigues, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for financial instruments. The fair value of forward exchange contracts
and collar options is determined using forward exchangs market rates at the balance date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes, is estimated by discounting the futura contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instzuments.

Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
e Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss m@]
*  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pWQ




Rakon Limited

. Derivative financial instruments
«  QOther financlal assets at amartised cost

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acguired, Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date with the exception of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

This category has two subcategories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value threugh profit or loss on initial
recognition. For accounting purposes, derivatives are categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance
date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried at fair value. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome,
in the period in which they arise.

The Group establishes fair value by using valuation technigues. Theseinclude reference to the fair values of recent arm'’s length transactions,
involving the same instruments ar other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis,

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note B3 b).

Classification of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incaome

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance within the FVOC! resarve is reciassified to retained earnings. Equity securlties
which are not held for trading, and which the Group has Irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in this category. These are
strategic investments and the Group considers this classification to be more relevant. '

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Receivables and other financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amartised cost on the basis of both the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are classified as current assets.

Other financial assets at amortised ¢ost include loans to related parties and trade and other receivables,

Derivative financial instruments

tn accordance with its wider risk management, it is the Group's strategy to apply cash flow hedge accounting to keep its foreign currency
revaluation fluctuations within its established [imits, refer note D2 b} and D2 ¢}. Applying cash flow hedge accounting enables the Group to
reduce the cash flow fluctuations arising from foreign exchange risk on an instrument or Group of instrements, or to hedge mismatches, A
cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss.

D12¢) Changes in accounting policy and disctosures

New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Group
A number of new accounting standards and amendments have been adopted effective 1 April 2018,
NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group adopted NZ [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from 1 April 2018, resulted in changes in accounting policies which
are distlosed in note B2 a). The group applied NZ IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method.

Following a detailed review of Group’s portfolio of contracts, management concluded that the implementation of NZ IFRS 15 has no material
impact on the opening balance sheet, therefore no transition adjustments have heen made. The details of the review process are outlined
below.

To assess the impact of NZ [FRS 15 on the Group has reviewed all significant contracts and the five-step method was applied to assess the
impact on revenue recognition. The five-step method for recognising revenue from contracts with customers invoives consideration of the
following:

1. Identifying the contract with the customer

2, ldentifying performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to distinct performance obligations; and
5. Recognising revenue.

Applying this appreach, the adoption of NZ IFRS 15 resulted in changing the timing of revenue recognition for spacific long-term cantracts
related to the space and defence segment in France. Previously the Group recognised the revenue In relation to these contracts on the
delivery of the product to the customer, whilst under NZ IFRS 15, revenue should be recognised over time, The impact of the new standard
for year ended 31 March 2019 was significant due to timing of completion of performance obligations.
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The table below shows the amount by which each financial statement line itam affected in the current year by NZ IFRS 15 as compared to
NZ IAS 18 and the related interpretations that wera in effect before the change.

NZiAS513 NZIFRS 15 NZIFRS 15

adjustment
Far the year ended 31 March 2019 $000s $000s $000s
Revenue {note B2a) 111,617 2,368 113,985
Trade and other receivables (note B3b) 38,119 2,368 40,487
Costofsales (61,607} (710} {62,317}
Inventory {note B5a) 40,020 (710} 39,310

NZ IFRS 8 Financial instrurnents

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments became effective for periods beginning on 1 January 2018, NZ IFRS 9 makes changes to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments, intreduces a new expected loss model when recognising expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets, and introduces new general hedge accounting requirements,

The accounting for the Group’s financial fiabilitles remains the same as it was under N2 IFRS 39. The adoption of NZ IFRS 8 has changed the
Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing NZ IFRS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL
approach.

The ECL model, further described in note B3 b}, applies to all the Group’s finanelal assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively without restating the comparative information for 2018 as permitted by the transitional
provisions. The difference between the previous carrying amount of financial instruments and the carrying amount of those Instruments at
1 April 2018 measured in accordance with NZ IFRS 9 has not been restated.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows, For
assets measured at fair value, gains and lasses will either be recorded in profit or foss or OC1. For investments in aquity instrements that are
nat held for trading, classification will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity Investment at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCI).

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods when the hedged itam affects profit or loss, as follows:

Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset {such as inventory), both the defarred hedging gains
and losses and the deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of the
asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recogaised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example through cost
of sales).

The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in profit or loss
within finance cost at the same time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or s s0ld or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs,
resulting in the recognition of a nen-financial asset such as inventory, When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss and defesred costs of hedging that were reported In equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

New and amended standards and Interpretations not yet adopted

NZ IFRS 16 Leases

NZ IFRS 16 was issued in January 2046. It will result in almast all leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction betwean
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset {the right to use the leased item} and a financiat liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The group intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
All right of use assets will be measured at the amount of the [ease Kability on adeption {adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

The standard will have no effect on the underlying cash flows, however amounts pald for leases will be reclassified from operating activity
to financing activity in the Statement of Cash Flows.
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Cn adoption at 1 Aprit 2019, and expected impact at 31 March 2020 is as follows.

Expected
On Adoption impact 31
of IFRS 16 March 2020

$000s $000s
Asset willincrease 9,783 7,611
Liabilities will increase {9,783) {8,831}
Net Asset Impact - (1,220}
Operatingexpenses will decrease 215
Interest expenses will increase 3

The above has no cash effect to the Group and the change is for financial reporting purposes only.

D12 d) Fareign currency translation

Functional and presentatlon currency

ttems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency that best reflacts the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity {"the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Zealand doliars, {"the presentation currency’), which is the functional currency of the parent.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies at the balance date are transiated to New Zealand dollars at the foreign excliange rate ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, within other
gains/(losses} — net, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are transfated to New Zealand dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The assets and liabilities of all of the Group companies {none of which have a currency of a hyper-inflationary econemy) that have a
functional currency that differs from the presentation currency, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consalidation, are
translated to New Zealand dollars at foreign exchange rates, rullng at the balance date. The revenues and expenses of these fareign
operations are translated to New Zealand dollars, at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign operations are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.
Borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to shareholders’ equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance date.

DiZ e} Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated being the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and the asset's value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprahensive Income.

For goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance date. Impalrment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash generating units {Group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (Group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount doas not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depraciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

D12 f) Employee entitlements

Superannuation schemes

‘Fhe Group’s New Zealand and overseas operations participate in their respective government superannuation schemes, whereby the Group
Is required 1o pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
ifthe fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to the employee service in the current and prior periods.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due.
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D12 g) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the years presented, comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences betwean the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, The following temporary differences are
not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initlal recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit and differences relating to investments In subsidiaries, associates and joint venture to the extent that they will probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balanca data.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax cradits, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit wilt be available, against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

D13. Imputation balances
2019 2018
50005 50005
Imputation credit available for use in subseguent periods 11,208 11,202
bi4. Principal subsidiaries
D14 a) Accounting policy

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group Is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns fram its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consclidated from the date on which controlis transferred to the Group. They are deconsalidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination shall be
measured at fair value, which shall be calculated as the foltowing: the total of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, the liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners, the equity issued by the Group and the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportional share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred.

All material transactions between subsidlaries or between the parent company and subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure cansistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the inttlal carrying amount for the purposes of subseguently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financtal asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or Habilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or [oss.
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D14 b)

Name of entity

Rakon America LLC

Rakon Singapore (Pte} Limited
Rakon Financial Services Limited
Rakon Internationai Limited
Rakon UK Holdings Limited
Rakon UK Limited

Rakon France SAS

Rakon HK Limited

Rakon {Mauritius) Limited
Rakon Investment HK Limited
Rakon Crystal Electronic
International Limited

Rakon India Pvt Limited
Rakon ESOP Trustee Eimited
Rakon PPS Trustee Limited

Subsidiaries at balance date

Principal activities

Marketing support

Marketing support

Financing

Marketing support

Holding company

Research and development
R&D, manufacturing and sales
Helding company

Holding company

Holding company

Marketing support

Manufacturing, R&D and sales
Share trustee
Share trustee

Country of
incorporation

UsA

Singapore

New Zealand
New Zealand
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
france

Hong Kong
Mauritius

Hong Kong

China

india
New Zealand
New Zealand

Balance
date

31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar

31-Mar

31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Mar

% interest held by group

2018 2018
100 100
100 100
100 100
160 100
100 100
160 100
100 100

50 50
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 48

Raken ESOP Trustee Limited and Rekon PPS Trustee Limited are classified as in-substance subsidiaries and are consolidated into the Group

flnancial statements.

D15.

Subsequent Events

The directors are not aware of any material events subsequent to the balance date 31 March 2019.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Rakon Limited

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Rakon Limited (the Company), including its
subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basts for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
(NZ)) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of treasury advisory services, agreed
upon procedures in relation to the Annual General Meeting and half year financial statements, as well
as review procedures over the confirmation of the Eligible Research and Development Expense
claimed under the Growth Grant. The provision of these other services has not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Group.

' PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 9 355 8000, F: +64 9 355 8001, pwc.co.nz
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Our audit approach

Overview
Anaudltlsde51gnedt0obtalnreasonableassurancewhetherthe .................
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Overall Group materiality: $1,140,000, which represents 1% of

Materiality revenue

Given the changes in the business during recent years, in our
judgement, revenue provided a more stable measure for establishing
our materiality benchmark.

We have determined that there are three key audit matters:

Audit scope

e Impairment risk for non-financial assets

Ky i e Valuation of research and development costs associated with the
matters development of new products

e Accounting for the investment in Thinxtra Limited.

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out above. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit, the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Audit scope

We designed our audit by assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements and
our application of materiality. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls including among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

We conducted a full scope audit over two segments, New Zealand, including the investment in
Thinxtra, and France and a limited review was conducted for India. Together these make up 100% of
external revenue. We conducted specific audit procedures for the UK subsidiary and for the
investment in Timemaker.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment risk for non-financial assets
As noted in note Cia, the Directors assess ~ Our audit procedures included the following;:

assets annually. f(.’l"' impairrpegt. The We updated our understanding of business processes
Dlrec'tors look 1plt1a11y ff)r indicators of and controls applied in the assessment of indicators of
mpairment which requires a level of impairment of non-financial assets and determining
judgement. any impairment required.

When the market capitalisation is lower In considering the results of the Directors’ assessment

than the net asset value of the Group this  of jmpairment on an asset class basis we have:
can be an indicator of potential

impairment of non-financial assets held by
the Group. Market capitalisation of the

Group at 31 March 2019 was $75.6 million
compared to the carrying value of thenet ~ ® Assessed whether there were indicators of

assets of $90 million. impairment for intangible R&D assets, which has
been discussed in the key audit matter below.

e Considered the historical recoverability of
inventory balances and whether there is any
indication of impairment.

The Directors performed an assessment of
impairment on an asset class basis aswell ~®  Considered the recoverability of deferred tax

as performing a business valuation for the assets.

Group as a whole. The business valuation  In considering the discounted cash flow model used for
was prepared on a value in use basis using  the assessment of impairment of the business as a

a discounted cash flow model. whole we have:

The key assumptions used by the e Compared cash flow forecasts used in the
Directors in the discounted cash flow discounted cash flow models to the latest Board
model are included in note Cia of the approved budgets and long-term forecasts.

financial statements which include: e Tested the mathematical accuracy of the

e Annual sales growth rate underlying model and agreed the carrying value of
e  Gross margin each CGU to the audited financial records.
e Terminal growth rates o Assessed the reliability of forecasts by performing

a look back analysis of historical forecasts against

e Discount rates
actual results.

The results of the Directors’ assessment

are detailed in note C1a e Considered key assumptions used in the

discounted cash flow models, in particular the
estimated sales growth rates, by agreeing to
supporting evidence of:

- Historical sales

- Current orders in place

- Communications with customers
- External market forecast reports.

e Engaged our valuation expert to assess and
challenge the assumptions for terminal growth
rates and discount rates used by management by
comparing them to relevant industry rates and
performing sensitivity analysis on those rates.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e Performed a sensitivity analysis on the cash flows
to determine whether a reasonably possible
change in assumptions could lead to a conclusion
that the assets are impaired.

e Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to ensure that they are
compliant with the requirements of NZ IFRS.

As a result of these procedures we did not propose any

adjustments.
Valuation of research and development
costs associated with the development of
new products
Rakon incurs costs with respect to Our audit procedures included the following:

developing new products. This is included
within the product development and
assets under construction categories of
intangible assets (note Bsb of the financial
statements) and amounts to $6.8 million
at 31 March 2019. There is a risk that the ¢ We obtained an understanding of the projects

e We updated our understanding of how the costs
for research and development are captured and
approved for capitalisation and the controls over
these processes.

costs that are being capitalised for which have been capitalised during the year and,
development may not meet the criteria for on a sample basis, agreed costs incurred to
capitalisation as an intangible asset under supporting documentation and approval.

NZ IFRS. e We assessed overall costs capitalised for

In particular, there is judgement and often compliance with Group policies and the
uncertainty around the potential for requirements defined in NZ IFRS for capitalisation
success of new projects as well as the of research and development costs.

technical feasibility and probable future e  For those products in production, where costs
economic benefits associated with new have been capitalised, we challenged the Directors’
and existing projects primarily with assessment of the future income expected from
respect to telecommunications those products by comparing the estimate with the
infrastructure products. level of sales currently being achieved.

The Directors assessed the future income o  We challenged the Directors’ assessment of the
generating ability of capitalised future income expected from new

development expenditure by referring to telecommunications infrastructure products by
current demand for the products now in comparing the estimate with the level of sales of
production and to the business case for previous generations of telecommunications
future sales of products not yet in infrastructure products and with market forecast
production. reports.

As a result of these procedures we did not propose any
adjustments.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accounting for the investiment in Thinxtra
Limited

Rakon holds ordinary shares in Thinxtra
Limited (“Thinxtra”), which was an equity
accounted associate investment in the
prior year. On 1 June 2018, Rakon lost
significant influence triggering a change in
the accounting method from equity
accounting to a financial asset carried at
fair value.

We considered the valuation of the
investment in Thinxtra a key audit matter
because of the uncertainty involved in the
estimation process and the significant
judgements the Directors make in
determining the fair value. Changes in the
assumptions applied as part of the
estimation process can lead to significant
movements in the fair value of the
investment.

The Directors developed a valuation
methodology based on a range of
valuation techniques with different
assigned probabilities based on the
available information and Directors’
judgement, as disclosed in note B4d. This
methodology was applied to estimate the
fair value of the investment as at

1 June 2018 and as at 31 March 2019.

The Directors also considered sensitivity
by determining other reasonably possible
scenarios and assessing the impact on the
valuation of these scenarios.

The results of the Directors’ assessment
and sensitivity analysis is detailed in note
B4d.

PwC

Our audit procedures included:

We obtained an understanding of the valuation
methodology developed by the Directors and the
key assumptions they applied in determining the
fair value of investment in Thinxtra as at 1 June
2018 and 31 March 2019.

We agreed the key inputs in the valuation model to
unaudited information obtained by management
from Thinxtra.

We considered the discounted cash flow model
approach which formed part of the Directors’ basis
of valuation. We determined the underlying
forecasts used in the model were not sufficiently
reliable due to Thinxtra’s business being at an
early stage of development, the history of not
meeting budgeted results and the reliance on
raising additional funding to achieve those
forecasts. Accordingly, this required us to take a
different valuation approach to that taken by the
Directors.

We engaged our valuation expert to provide
support in our assessment of the fair value of the
investment as at 1 June 2018 and 31 March 2019.
Our expert’s assessment was based on the
following valuation approaches:

- Consideration of the share price achieved in
Thinxtra’s capital raise that closed on 18 April
2019, adjusted for an estimated discount to
fair value that would be expected in the
circumstances of that capital raise.

- Cost to replicate approach based on the
capital contributed and the losses incurred to
date on the basis that a purchaser would avoid
those costs to reach the position that Thinxtra
is currently in.

- Look-back assessment of the fair value at
1 June 2018 given the circumstances and
events between 1 June 2018 and
31 March 2019.

We considered a range of reasonably possible
alternative scenarios. For each scenario, we
assessed whether the changes were reasonably
possible and tested the impact of those changes on
the valuation.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

o We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to ensure that this is compliant
with the requirements of NZ IFRS.

Based on our work we consider that, given the
estimation uncertainty for an investment in a business
of this nature, the fair value determined by the
Directors at 1 June 2018 and at 31 March 2019 is
within the range of reasonable expected outcomes.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, except that
not all other information was available to us at the date of our signing. Prior to the date of this report
we had received and read the Directors’ Report. The Shareholder Information and Corporate
Governance sections of the annual report are expected to be made available to us after the date of our
report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities /audit-
report-1/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Who we report to

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholders, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lisa Crooke.

For and on behalf of:

ﬂ cerafvhruge CC?%/A

Chartered Accountants Auckland
16 May 2019
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